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This is  a public proceeding inst i tuted by Comnission order 

(order) dated January 5, 1977, pursuant t o  Sections 15(b) and 19(h) 

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (E~change Act) and Section 9(b) 

of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (Investment Company Act), t o  

determine whether the above-named respondents, L/ comnitted various 

charged violations of the Exchange Act and regulations thereunder, as 

alleged by the Division of Enforcement (Division), and the remdia l  

action, i f  any, that  might be appropriate i n  the public interest .  

The Order alleges, i n  substance, tha t  the remaining respondents 

in t h i s  proceeding, William M. Hess (Hess) and Revere Management Co., Inc., 

(Managemnt) willf'ully violated and willf'ully aided and abetted vio- 

lati'ons' of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder. 

Respondents Hess and Management were represented by counsel 

thmughout the procee-. Proposed findings of fact  and conclusions 

of l aw and supporting br iefs  were B l e d  on behalf of Hess, Managemnt' 

and the Division. 

Tfie findings and conclusions herein are based upon clear and 

convincing evidence as determined fYom the record and upon observation 

of the witnesses .-2/ 

-V Prior t o  the hearing the Division was unable t o  obtain service 
of the Order on respondents Albert Kuhn (Kuhn) o r  American Fund 
Service, Ltd. and they did not appear nor were they represented 
during the proceeding. 

The Comnission has traditionally enployed the "preponderance of the 
evidence" standard of proof. However, i n  its recent decision i n  
Collins Securities Corporation v. S.E.C., C.A.D.C., August 12, 1977, 
the Court held that ,  at  least  i n  cases involving alleged fraud and 
potentially severe sanctions, the higher "clear and convincing evi- 
dence" standard must be met. In  the instant case, where there are 
no factual disputes of substance, the application of e i ther  standard 
yields the same results. 



The findings herein are  applicable only t o  Hess and Management 

and are not binding on any of the other respondents named i n  the Order. 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND LAW 

Respondents 

Revere Management Co ., Inc ., (Management) , a Pennsylvania cor- 

poration with i ts principal offices a t  123 South Broad St ree t ,  Philadelphia, 

Pennsylvania, has been registered with t h i s  Conmission as a broker-

dealer pursuant t o  Section 15(b ) ( l )  of the Exchange Act since November 

10, 1959, and i s  a member of the National Association of Securit ies 

Dealers (NASD). Since 1959 Management has been the exclusive underwriter 

and has provided conplete admbistratjve services t o  Revere Fund, Inc. 

(Revere), a Delaware corporation which has been registered with this 

Comnission since 1959, as a management, open-end, diversified invest- 

ment conpany, pursuant t o  Section 8(a)  of the Investmnt Company Act. 

William Hess (Hess) received a BS degree f r o m  the Wharton School 

of the University of Pennsylvania in 1941. Following military service 

he entered the securi t ies  business i n  1946 and is Chairman, Treasurer 

and 36% shareholder of Hess, Grant and Frazier, Inc. (formerly Hess, 

Grant & Remington, Inc .) a New York Stock Exchange merber firm, Hess 

is  President and C h a i m  of Revere. He i s  also Chalrman and Treasurer 

of Philadelphia Financial Management Company (Financial), a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of Hess, Grant and Frazier, Inc. Financial is registered 

with the Conmission as an investment adviser pursuant t o  Section 203 



of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, and has provided advisory ser-

vices t o  Management since 1971. When Revere E g i s t e ~ dwith the 

Cornmission i n  1959, Hess was a director and President of Managemnt 

and Revere, and a l l  of Managerrent's directors were directors and 

stockholders of Hess, Grant & Remington, Inc. During 1972 and 1973 

rnembers of the Hess family held 27.9% of the outstanding shares of 

Management; members of the family of Richard 0.  Smith, a director of 

Revere, held 36.7% of the outstanding shares of Management; the wife of 

James G r a n t ,  a shareholder and director of Hess, Grant & F h z i e r ,  Inc., 

held 16.2%of the shares of Management and Howard Sanders who was 

President, Treasurer and a director  of Management fmm October 1966 

u n t i l  June 1, 1972, held a 12.2% interest  i n  Managemnt. 

Albert Kuhn (Kuhn) is  a G e m  national who was a mutual fund 

dealer with h is  principal off ice at Charlotten Strasse 32, Dusseldorf, 

Gemmy.  He w a s  assisted by his wife Sylvia and at one time had as 

many as 25 salesmen working fo r  him i n  West Germany, Belgian and other 

European countries. He xepresented Management f h m  1966 un t i l  early 

1974 

American Fund Services, Ltd. ( A S )  was fomded by Kuhn on 

May 5, 1969, as a Bahamian corporakion. It never had an off ice o r  

personnel i n  the Bahamas but maintained a Post Office Box i n  Nassau. 

A Nassau attorney forwarded the unopened mail t o  Kuhn's Dusseldorf 

address. 

m rnCIPALS 

Howard Sanders (Sanders) received a BS degree fram Temple Uni-

verersity in 1962 and a Master of Accounting degree f b m  Ohio State 

University i n  1966. He worked with the public accounting firm of 



Price Waterhouse & Co. from February 1962 to  September 1965. In 

February 1966, he was hired as Treasurer of Management and i n  October 

1966 was elected President and a director as well. He w a s  also elected 

Treasurer of Revere at  the same time. He was in charge of sales pro- 

motion and was responsible for  obtaining dealers fo r  Management. He 

was also, an ass is tant  professor of accounting at Temple University. 

He resigned from Management i n  June 1972, and since then has been opera- 

t ing  Sanders Financial Managemnt Inc. i n  Fort Lauderdale, Florida. 

James Michael McFadden (McFadden) received a degree i n  

EconoKcs flmn Villanova University in 1966. He is a CPA and w a s  employed 

by the public accounting firm of H a s k i n s  & Sel ls  from May 1966 t o  November 

1968 when he joined Management as Vice-President and Secretary. In June 

1972, he also,.became Secretary-Treasurer of Revere and i n  February 1973, 

becam Executive Vice-President, Secretary-Treasurer and a director  of 

Management. He resigned i n  January 1974, because Hess suggested he look 

fo r  another job as Management could no longer afford h i s  salary. 

Edwin K. Daly (Daly) is an attorney who was counsel t o  Revere 

Fund and Management from about 1966 t o  about June 1974. During t h i s  tiroe 

he was i n  private practice but pr ior  t o  1966 he was associated with the 

Philadelphia l a w  firm of Stradley, Ronon, Stevens & Young, which represented 

Fund and Managemnt at tha t  time. When he l e f t  the firm Fund and Management 

retained him as t h e i r  counsel. He was consulted on an almost daily basis, 

when necessary, by McFadden concerning problems which arose at Management, 

part icular ly those concerning Kuhn. He also, had frequent discussions 

with Hess concerning these matters. 



Richard May (May) has a BS degree i n  Industrial Management 

from LaSalle College and spent 2-1/2 years i n  the U.S. Army which he 

l e f t  i n  1967 with the rank of Captain. In 1968 he joined Fi rs t  Pennsylvania 

Corporation (Penco) an a f f i l i a t e  of F i rs t  Pennsylvania Bank. He con- 

tinued with Fund Plan Services (FPS), a subsidiary of Penco, and i n  

Decen-ber 1974, he became an assistant vice president of FPS. FPS was 

the transfer agent fo r  som 40 different mutual f'unds and i n  February 

1969, became transfer agent and shareholder record keeper for Revere 

Fund. FPS processed all r e d q t i o n  requests for  Revere shareholders 

from early 1972 unt i l  early 1974. 

Violations 

The Order charges that k.om on or about June 30, 1972, t o  on o r  

about December 3, 1973, Management, Hess, Kuhn and AFS willf'ully vio- 

of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder i n  redeeming and effecting 

transactions in the s h m s  of Revere, and in connection therarith,  directly 

-3/ Section 10(b) as here pertinent mkes it unlawf'ul for  any person t o  
use o r  employ in connection with the purchase or  sa le  of a security 
any manipulative device o r  contrivance i n  contravention of rules 
and regulations bf the Comnission prescribed thereunder. Rule lob-5 
defines manipulative or  deceptive devices by making it unlawf'ul fo r  
any persons i n  such connection: "(1)t o  employ any device, scheme, 
or  a r t i f i c e  t o  def'raud, (2) t o  make any untrue statement of a m t e r i a l  
fact o r  t o  omit t o  s t a t e  a material fact necessary i n  order t o  make 
the statements made, i n  the l ight  of the circumstances under which 
they were made, not misleading, o r  (3) t o  engage i n  any act ,  practice, 
o r  course of business which operates o r  would operate as a fraud o r  
deceit upon any person ..." 

3'la ted and willf'ully aided and abetted violations of Section 10(b) 



and indirectly,  made untrue s ta temnts  of material fac ts  and omitted 

t o  s t a t e  material facts  necessary i n  order t o  rrake the statements made, 

i n  l ight  of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, 

and engaged in transactions, acts ,  practices and a course of conduct which 

operated as a fraud and deceit upon the se l le rs  of such shares. A s  pa r t  

of this conduct respondents made false and misleading statements of material 

facts  and omitted t o  s t a t e  material facts  concerning: 

the redenption procedures employed by Revere; 

the fai lure of shareholders t o  receive redemtion 

proceeds and the disposition of such proceeds; 

the unauthorized affixing on redemption checks of 

signatures which were purported t o  be those of redeeming 

shareholders; 

the purported existence of an investigation by the 

Cornmission in to  the ac t iv i t ies  of Revere; 

Kuhn's purported ro le  a s  director of Revere; 

the processing of inproperly guaranteed redenption 

requests; and, 

statements and omissions of similar purport and object. 


The allegations se t  forth in the Order involving Managment and 

Hess m s e  h m the i r  enployment of Kuhn. .Management is the exclusive 

underwriter of Revere, of which Hess is  pmsident, and it has distributed 

f'und shares through NASD dealers. I n  1966, Howard Sanders (Sanders), who 

was then president and t r e a s m r  of Management, met Kuhn through a member 

of the NASD and although Kuhn w a s  not an NASD merrber he sigged him up as 

a dealer i n  Germany. Kuhn proved t o  be a successfbl s a l e s m  and at one 

time operated as an exclusive dis tr ibutor  of the Revere shares in Germany 

pursuant t o  a contract with Management. 

From October 28, 1966, the date of h i s  f i r s t  contact with m m e n t  , 
u n t i l  Noverrber 1, 1969, when the West German g o v e m n t  restr icted the 

sales  of foreign securities,  Kuhn and h is  salesrrian sold approximately 



3 million dollarsworthof Revere shares. Following the action of the 

German government sales  by Kuhn were non existent except fo r  the con- 

tinuance of contract plans. Moreover, G e m  investors began t o  redeem 

t h e i r  shares, mostly through Kuhn, and i n  1972 and 1973, these redemptions 

totaled over a quarter of a million dollars.  In 1974, following complaints 

by Revere shareholders t o  the G e m  authorit ies,  Kuhn was arrested and 

bro@t t o  trial i n  Dusseldorf for  having enbezzled approximtely $235,000 

from Revere shareholders. He w a s  convicted and is now serving a 5 y e a r  

sentence i n  a German prison. 

In  support of i ts  charges i n  the Order the Division maintains 

tha t  Management and Hess ignored a ser ies  of "red flags" ralsed by Kuhnls 

ac t iv i t i e s ;  that  these "red flags" should have put Hess and Management 

on notice that  something w a s  wrong; tha t  they had a duty t o  control o r  

cu r t a i l  Kuhnls ac t iv i t ies ;  and tha t  t h i s  duty, i f  properly carried out, 

would have prevented the en&ezzlement of German shareholders by Kuhn. 

?he fact  tha t  Management and Hess did nothing t o  control Kuhn and his 

ac t iv i t i e s  made them participants i n  Kuhnls scheme t o  def'raud investors. 

Respondents, on the other hand, argue that  Kuhn independently 

performed a f'raud on many of his German customers and tha t  Management and 

Hess had no knowledge of and did not par t ic ipate  in Kuhnts fraudulent 

ac t iv i t i e s .  That the actions taken by Hess and Management i n  the i r  

dealings with Kuhn in l igh t  of the circumstances as they existed p r io r  

t o  Kuhnls conviction, without the benefit of hindsigtnt, did not violate  

the anti-fraud provisions of the Exchange Act. 



The facts  herein are not seriously disputed. The par t ies  submitted 

a s t ipulat ion of facts  and agreed t o  the authenticity of some 318 pre- 

marked Division exhibits a t  the comnencernent of the proceedings. The 

admissibility, relevancy and materiali ty of the exhibits were ruled on 

during the course of the hearing. Therefore, the issues t o  be resolved 

ar i se  fm the interpretat ion of the s t a tu t e  and rule,  which respondents 

are charged with violating, i n  l igh t  of the applicable fac ts .  

b m October 28, 1966, u n t i l  September 24, 1969, Kuhn was a very 

active salesman for  the Fund. He re t a i l ed  a l o t  of shares and during the 

l a t e r  par t  of the period he was an exclusive dis t r ibutor  f o r  Revere Fund 

shares in  G e m y  pursuant t o  an agreement with Management which was 

the underwriter f o r  the Fund. On September 24, 1969, the exclusive agency 

agreemnt w a s  terminated. 

On October 28, 1966, Management contracted with Kuhn t o  be a 

d is t r ibutor  of Fund shares. Somtime i n  1967 at Kuhn's  request, a 

second contract was entered in to  between Managemnt and Kuhn designating 

him as Management's exclusive dis t r ibutor  in  Gemany. This exclusive 

d is t r ibutor  contract w a s  cancelled on September 24, 1969. 

Once he became a Fund dis t r ibutor  Kuhn had the Fund prospectus 

translated in to  German f o r  dis t r ibut ion t o  prospective investors. Also, 

sornetime between October 1966 and October 1969, Kuhn published and dis-

tr ibuted i n  Germany a magazine en t i t l ed  Investment Fund Analysis, a 

publication featuring s tor ies ,  performance and advertisements 

relat ing primarily t o  American mutual f'unds . Kuhn sent copies t o  Sanders 

and everyone at Management, including Hess, saw the magazine. The magazine 

carr ied advertisements f o r  Revere, and one such advertisement included 



pictures  of Hess and Sanders and referred t o  Kuhn as  Revere 's 

exclusive d is t r ibu tor .  

From 1967 t o  1970 lvlanagement experienced d i f f i cu l t i e s  with 

Kuhn and American Fund Services (AE-S) concerning l a t e  payrnents f o r  Fund 

shares sold i n  Germany. The payments made by the German investors t o  

Kuhn were not received by Revere, Management o r  Fund Plan Services, Inc. 

(FPS) within seven days of the reported and effective sales  of 

Revere shares as required by Regulation T. 51 

On September 5, 1968, the Revere directors discussed the signifi-

cant l y  l a t e  p w n t  s for  ( K u h n '  s customers ) purchases accompanied by 

an increasing r a t e  of sales .  In view of the lateness of the payments, 

it was determined by the board t o  ref'use fur ther  sales t o  Kuhn un t i l  

the  unpaid orders were resolved. A conardttee of 2 directors w a s  appointed 

t o  review the s i tua t ion  before resuming business with Kuhn on a credit  

basis .  A t  the  November 1968 director 's  meeting it was reported that  sales 

with Kuhn had been resumed and tha t  Kuhnls payments were on a current 

basis .  

However, subsequent t o  sales being resumed with K u h n  there 

were M h e r  d i f f i c u l t i e s  and f r o m  Novenber 1, 1968 through October 

6, 1969, payments f o r  20 of  Kuhnls transactions were more than 10 days 

a/ A wholly owned subsidiary of F i r s t  Pennsylvania Banking & Trust-
Company (Penco) which has served as Revere1s transfer  and dividend 
d i s b m i n g  agent and custodian f o r  a l l  of Revere's securi t ies .  
F'PS w a s  delegated the f'unction of processing Revere's redemptions 
m u n d  April 1972. Neither Penco nor FPS had any par t  in Revere's 
management o r  policy decisions. 

-5/ Regulation T, promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board pursuant t o  
Section 7 of the  Exchange Act, provldes, among other things not 
here pertinent,  that purchases of securi t ies  be paid for  within 
7 days* 



l a t e  and a t  some time during th i s  period Daly found it necessary t o  

discuss the l a t e  payment problem with the NASD. An NASD Report of 

Examination of Management, dated October 9, 1969, stated under comnents: 

"Inadequate customer ledger and fa i lure  t o  notify NASD on l a t e  payments 

by r e t a i l e r  t o  underwriter." The r e t a i l e r  was Kuhn and the underwriter 

was Management. On March 26, 1970, the NASD addressed a l e t t e r  t o  Sanders 

set t ing forth the resul t s  of i ts examination which stated: 

"Firm not preparing o r  maintaining an adequate customers1 ledger 
i n  accordance with provisions of SEC Rule 17a-3 and 4 as found 
beginning on page 4021 of the Associationls Manual." 

The NASD l e t t e r  stated, also, tha t  during the period fYom at least 

Novenber 1, 1968 tkrough October 1969 the firm had not notified the 

NASD Distr ict  Office of l a t e  payments received for  shares of investment 

companies purchased by the members. Meanwhile, on November 5, 1969, the 

Revere directors had ordered that  future business with Kuhn must be on 

a cash only basis. 

Also, on March 19, 1969, Haskins & Sells ,  Management l s auditors, 

sent a material inadequacy l e t t e r  t o  Management concerning Management's 

Financial Report on Form X-17A-5, fo r  the year ended Decenber 31, 1968, 

f i l e d  with the Conmission. The l e t t e r  and report called attention t o  

material inadequacies i n  the accounting system, internal accounting control 

and procedures for  safeguarding securi t ies .  It w a s  noted that  the custodian 

bank for  Revere had encountered d i f f icul t ies  i n  handling the volume of 

transactions occuring i n  1968, which resulted i n  individual inaccuracies i n  

Managementls f a i l  and cash balances. Moreover, Haskins & Sells  stated that  

"a European bank accomt, established t o  f a c i l i t a t e  t ransfer  of funds re-

la t ing  t o  foreign sales of Fund shares by an independent foreign dealer 

(Kuhn),w a s  not incorporated into the Ccanpany l s accounting system 

nor was the account effectively reconciled during the period due t o  in- 



adequate infornation supplied by the dealer." 

On Riarch 26, 1969, Haskins & Sells  submitted a l e t t e r  of corrrnents 

and ~ c o m n d a t i o n s  t o  Management. Under a section ent i t led  Foreign 

Sales, it was noted tha t  the German bank account had not been incor- 

porated in to  Management's accounting system o r  effectively reconciled 

during the year and tha t  the current method for  the collections on sales  

in West Germmy is not effective.  It w a s  recormended that  the practice 

of paying Kuhnls salesmen f r o m  m d s  in the German accounts be stopped 

inmediately and tha t  all correspondence from AFS (which w a s  i n  G e m )  

be translated in to  English. It w a s  f'urther suggested, i n  view of 

SEC Investment Company Act Release No. 5618, tha t  management and counsel 

inmediately review Management's position as related t o  sales  t o  foreign 

nationalsasf ' i t  appears that  adoption of these proposals w i l l  en ta i l  many 

changes in your contracts and procedures. " 

On February 5, 1970, Haskins & Sel l s ,  sent Management another 

material inadequacy l e t t e r  concerning i ts Financial Report on Form X-

17A-5 f o r  the year ended Decenber 31, 1969. This l e t t e r  contained com-

ments on many of the deficiencies previously noted, including the fa i lure  

t o  reconcile the G e m  bank account, but noted that  the former custodian 

bank agreement had been terminated and a new custodian bank (Penco) 

employed on April 7, 1969. Haskins & Sel l s  s t a t e s  that  the performance 

of Managanent since t ransfer  t o  the new custodian bank indicated the 

problems in handling the volume of transactions experienced during 1968, 

had been solved. 



The European bank account referred t o  by Haskins & Sel ls  w a s  an 

account opened by Management a t  the Dresdner Bank inDusseldorf , Germany, 

in 1967, as a conduit for  f ac i l i t a t ing  collections and transfer of 

funds on sa les  of Revere shares by Kuhn. Actually there were 2 accounts, 

one f o r  deutsche marks and one for  dollars and the only signatories 

(two had t o  sign) were Hess, Sanders and Smith. Deposits f r o m  share 

purchasers would be made ih to  the deutsche mark account and Kuhn would 

transfer them into the dol lar  account. Every week o r  two Managanent 

would t ransfer  the accumulated deposits t o  Penco and the shareholders1 

accounts would be credited by Management i n  accordance with investrwnt 

lists flunished by Kuhn o r  h i s  wife Sylvia. 

In 1969, at Kuhnls suggestion, h i s  son, Hagen Kuhn, w a s  hired 

by Management t o  "monitor German problem" and handle the G e m  

accounts. Hagen would furmish lists of investors t o  FPS which indicated 

t o  whose account mnies  deposited i n  the Dresdner Bank were t o  be credited. 

Frequently, theamountson the lists did not correspond t o  the  amount of 

the checks. When discrepancies occurred, Hagen Kuhn would make erasures 

on the lists, adding and eliminating names "to make the whole thing 

se t t l e . "  Richard M a y  (May) assis tant  vice-president of FPS, believed 

tha t  Hagen Kuhn w a s  not investing the shareholders1 mnies in a timely 

fashion and reported this bel ief  t o  McFadden who "somewhat dismissed" 

h i s  suspicion tha t  Hagen Kuhn was "accumdating mnies." May believed 

tha t  Hagen Kuhn w a s  an employee of AF'S, inasmuch as he had indicated t o  

M a y  tha t  he was a representative fo r  Albert and Sylvia Kuhn. 



Sometim i n  1969 Hagen Kuhn fraudulently endorsed, converted 

and cashed approximately $3,400 i n  conrmission checks payable t o  Kuhn 

o r  AFS which Management had entrusted t o  Hagen Kuhn for  forwarding 

t o  Germmy. The conversion w a s  acconplished without the knowledge 

or  authorization of Kuhn o r  Management although both soon learned of 

it. Sanders advised Hess of Hagen Kuhnls conversion of the comnission 

checks. 

By l e t t e r  dated Septenber 23, 1969, Hess and Sanders directed 

the  Dresdner Bank t o  close the accounts but the German investors were 

not advised of t h i s  action and they continued t o  make, and the Dresdner 

Bank continued t o  accept, investors1 deposits. On Decemer 3, 1969, 

the Dresdner Bank w a s  again instructed t o  close the accounts and t o  

accept no f'urther deposits. 

In addition t o  the l a t e  payment and the Dresdner Bank problem, 

Management, around 1969, was having other problems with Kuhn caused by 

his d e m d s  fo r  c o ~ s s i o n s  and expenses which Management believed t o  

be excessive, and h is  threats t o  cause R e v e ~ l s  German shareholders, 

whom he referred to as "his i n ~ e s t o r s ' ~ ,t o  redeem t h e i r  Revere accounts. 

On September 24, 1969, Management and Kuhn entered into an 

agreemnt, signed by Sanders and Kuhn and witnessed by Hess, terminating 

the "exclusive agency agreement" between Management and Kuhn. 'Ihis t e ~  

mination agreement was written by Daly and w a s  intended t o  resolve the 

question of commissions claimed by Kuhn, t o  enforce h is  corrpliance with 

the NASD Rules of Fair  Practice, and t o  prevent h i s  encouraging Revere 

shareholders t o  redeem. In order t o  s e t t l e  the comnission dispute, 

Managemnt paid Kuhn $9,934 when the exclusive agreement was terminated 



and agreed t o  pay another $2,000. On November 3, 1969, Sanders sent; a 

l e t t e r  t o  Sylvia Kuhn enclosing a check for  $2,000 and s t a t ing  tha t  

"It should be noted tha t  the  $2,000 payment received by you includes a l l  

past problems of overpayments and commissions. " 

On July 28, 1969, the German government pmmulgated a law con-

cerning the  Distribution of Foreign Shares and the Taxation of Reve- 

nues f'rom Foreign Shares (ForInvestLaw) which became effect ive on 

Novenber 1, 1969. This effect ively prevented f W h e r  dis t r ibut ion 

of Revere shares in Germany. 6/Therefore, Kuhn was retained a s  a 

dealer pursuant t o  this t h i r d  contract not in anticipation tha t  he 

was going t o  s e l l  mre Revere shares, but that  he would continue t o  

have the rigtnt t o  receive "trail commissions", commissions which are 

accrued by the payment of installments on Investment plans. However, 

Management did not advise e i the r  the German shareholders o r  FPS tha t  

the  exclusive distributorship agreement with Kuhn had been terminated. 

Although the 1969 termination contract was designed t o  end all 

problems with Kuhn it did not. In May 1970 Hess received a l e t t e r  

fmm Albert Kuhn and on August 4, 1970, Management received a letter 

f'mm Albert and Sylvia Kuhn i n  which they demanded more comnissions, 

alleged tha t  many of the deposits made in the Dresdner Bank accounts 

had not been invested fo r  shareholders and accused Management of em 

bezzling mnies  owed t o  the  Kuhns and German shareholders. The Kuhns 

-6/ The new German law required f o r ~ i g n  based mutual funds t o  
r e a s t e r  and t o  m e t  cer ta in  requirements which Revere chose 
not t o  do. 



wanted Management t o  invest for  o r  return t o  various shareholders 

approximately $3,400 and t o  pay t o  AFS $3,300 as settlement on 

$7,000 claimed t o  be due AES i n  comissions. A t  Dalyls suggestion 

McFadden reconciled the Dresdner Bank accounts and reviewed and 

analyzed the sharvholder investment accounts and the Kuhn conanission 

account. 

McFadden established tha t  Management may have owed custaners 

approximately $1,100. However, h i s  analysis led him t o  suspect tha t  

a p ~ r o x w t e l ~$1500 had been withdrawn from the deutsche mark account 

at the Dresdner Bank without being deposited in to  the U.S. dollar 

account. McFadden found that the  monies Kuhn wanted invested for  

customers had been deposited i n  the Dresdner Bank account pr ior  t o  

September 1969. Since he found tha t  i n  September 1969 Managemnt had 

made all investments i n  accordance with the  investment lists rumished by 

Hagen Kuhn he assumed tha t  the monies Kuhn now wanted invested w e r e  

m n i e s  which had not been properly credited t o  customers pr ior  t o  

Septeder  1969 but had instead been "used for  other purposes." The 

f ac t s  showed tha t  payments being requested w e r e  one nunber higher than the 

nunber of payments invested fo r  32 of 140 accounts l i s t e d  on Hagen Kuhnls 

September 1969 list. This led McFadden t o  suspect the llpossdbility of 

a lapping operation." -7/ 

-7/ Lapping w a s  described as  a device t o  i l l ega l ly  increase cash 
flow - the f i r s t  ( A )  account payment is  pocketed, or diverted, 
the second (B) account payment is  used to  cover the A account, 
the C t o  cover the B, e tc .  so  that  the f i r s t  account and then the 
succeeding accounts do not become past due and arouse suspicion. 



- 16 -
McFadden prepared a lengthy mmrandum ent i t led  Review of 

the  German Matter containing certain findings and asswnptions based 

on the fac ts  developed by h i s  detailed examination of the s i tuat ion.  

The memrandum w a s  transmitted t o  Sanders and Daly on September 30, 

1970. McFadden noted i n  his memrandum tha t  the $3,400 claimed by 

Kuhn t o  be due t o  custmers  was the same amount that  Hagen Kuhn had 

converted i n  comission checks due t o  Kuhn and he was "sure" that  

Kuhn would make up this $3,400 i n  some manner. McFadden believed 

tha t  Kuhn would attempt t o  obtain the $3,400 (1) f r o m  Hagen Kuhn, 

(2)  d i rec t ly  f'rom Management, (3) frm Revere's custodian bank, o r  

(4) indirect ly  k o m  Managemnt by "diverting cus tmer  deposits given 

t o  him o r  Dresdner Bank." The fourth al ternat ive w a s  the one McFadden 

w a s  "mst sure was taken." McFadden t e s t i f i e d  tha t  he spent at least 

100 hours reconciling the Dresdner Bank accounts and preparing the 

1970 m r a n d u m .  

Following a thorn@ discussion of all the issues involving 

Managpnent, Kuhn, the Dresdner Bank accounts and the German share- 

holders, McFadden suggests tha t  s o w  sor t  of a settlement with Kuhn 

should be considered i n  order t o  avoid an investigation involving 

the SEC o r  the NASD. He says: "If my conclusions are correct as t o  

our l i a b i l i t i e s  we should make an immediate settlement t o  avoid any 

unnecessary involvement with regulatory bodies. * * * Remember, the 

German Bank Account was the  subject of a lmaterial inadequacy1 letter 

t o  the SEC i n  1968 a s  the r e su l t  of the  Haskhs & Sel l s  audit .  * * * 
The SEC sent a representative t o  our off ice and he w a s  assured we 



had the matter under control. I f  they are made aware tha t  such i s  

not the case then we can only be put i n  a bad l imt .  The SEC is 

not concerned whether o r  not a dealer o r  management company loses 

money. Their primary concern is fo r  the shareholders welfare. I f  

a shareholder i s  hurt it i s  no excuse that  w e  had no way of knowing, 

we remain responsible. We must eliminate the possibi l i ty  of hurting the 

shareholders in any case. When t h i s  i s  done we can then procede ( s i c )  

t o  prove who took what mney, when and how." 

A meeting was held t o  discuss Kuhn's demands for more comnissions 

and shareholder investments. Present were Kuhn, Hess, Daly, Sanders 

and McFadden. A t  this meeting Kuhn again threatened t o  cause re- 

demptions i f  he did not get the mney he was demanding. Daly  responded 

tha t  (1) Management did not believe tha t  Kuhn was en t i t l ed  t o  t h i s  

mney, (2)  the 1969 termination agreement had se t t l ed  a l l  comnission 

disputes, and (3) Kuhn could be expected t o  be sued i f  he damaged 

Revere 's reputation. McFadden to ld  Kuhn a t  this meeting that  Manage- 

ment knew he w a s  not en t i t l ed  t o  these comdssions and accused Kuhn 

of knowing that  Hagen Kuhn had erhezzled $3,400 of h i s  conimission money. 

Kuhn, however, denied knowledge of this embezzlement, taking the  position 

tha t  Management had never paid the money a t  a l l .  

In  the 1970-71 period there were very substantial  redemptions -8/ 

by German shareholders, a rimer of which were written in the exact 

sm format on Kuhn's stationery requesting that  the proceeds be 

forwarded t o  the transfer agent for  the  One Hundred Fund, which Kuhn 

-8/ Forty-six German shareholders redeemed i n  1969; 94 in 1970; 
40 i n  1971; and, 30 in 1972. 



also  represented. Richard May reported these redemption requests 

t o  McFadden as being unusual because FPS normally did not have shareholders 

requesting t h e i r  accounts be transferred t o  an unaffil iated fund. 

During 1971 Management received camplaints from German 

shareholders which indicated Kuhn and h i s  salesmen were misrepresenting 

t h e i r  position vis-a-vis Revere and, also, tha t  investors deposits 

were not being promptly transmitted or credited t o  the i r  accounts. 

I n  January a German shareholder wrote t o  Management that  an AFS 

salesman, whm she referred t o  as Management's "investmnt advisor", 

had embezzled $1,100 of her  f'unds . The l e t t e r  states tha t  Kuhn had 

been advised of this matter but had not forwarded the information on 

t o  Management. I n  i t s  reply Managemnt denied tha t  the salesman had 

been enployed by Managemnt "ei ther  as a representative o r  i n  any other 

capacity. 

In a similar l e t t e r  received in  February 1971, another German 

shareholder s tated tha t  despite her complaints t o  an AFS salesman, whom 

she referred t o  as "investment advisor fo r  Revere Fundt1, and c o w  

pla in ts  made by the salesman to  llDusseldorf", three different deposits 

had not been credited t o  her account. Managemntts reply indicates 

tha t  the three specif ic  deposits had not been made t o  her account 

and s t a t e s  that  the salesman "is not the investmnt advisor fo r  

Revere F'und, Inc., nor is  he related t o  Revere Fund i n  any other way. 

He is a salesman f o r  a dealer, (American Fund Service), who sold Revere 

Fund i n  Germany over the past several years." 



Another January 1971 l e t t e r  h m a German shareholder t o  Kuhn 

and forwarded t o  Management questioned why i t  took so long for  his  

deposits to  be credited t o  his account, one apparently taking three 

months. 

A l e t t e r  received by Managemnt during July 1971, from a 

G e m  shareholder stated that deposits had been made monthly from 

November 1967 through December 1970 in to  a Dresdner Bank account in 

Dusseldorf but for  1970 only 4 credit  entr ies  had been received and 

tha t  he had stopped payments in  January 1971. The shareholder s tated 

tha t  he could not get any clariQing information f r o m  Kuhn and, therefore, 

was requesting Management t o  inves t imte  the situation. He also in- 

dicated that  he knew of others who were waiting t o  have the i r  mnies 

credited t o  t h e i r  accounts. Management's reply indicates 8 payrrents 

credited t o  the shareholder's account during 1970, with 6 m r e  havlng 

been made between January 20, 1971 and April 5, 1971, but does not 

explain why 6 payments were entered a f t e r  the shareholder had dis-

continued making deposits t o  the account. 

Beginning i n  1972 and continuing in to  1974, Alfred and Sylvia 

Kuhn systematically defrauded a t  least  39 of the i r  customers out of 

t h e i r  mutual fund investmnts m u n t i n g  t o  $246,397.22. O f  these 

customrs 36 were Revere shareholders, one of whom had 2 accounts, and one 

who hada 100 Fund account as well. The other 3 customers had 100 

Fund accounts. The Table on the following page affords a sumnary of  

the shareholders defrauded as reflected i n  the German Court Record of 

the Kuhns' trial and conviction. -9/ 

91 The judgment entered against ATbert and Sylvia Kuhn on December 
8 1975, by the High X Court of Criminal Jurisdiction of the 
~ b e rCourt of hsse ldorf  i n  the Federal Republic of Germany 
w a s  received i n  evidence i n  t h i s  proceeding by stipulation of 
the part ies .  
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Chronological Table of Investors and Amounts Rnbezzled by Kuhn 

Transmittal Date* One 
Redemption Fr: Management Revere Hundred 
Date Shareholder To: FPS Fund Fund 

Lohmann 

Renningho f f 

Theimann 

Hartel 

D r .  Schmid 

Haustein 

Franzen 

K u s s  

D r .  Drueck 

D r .  Drueck 

Martiz 

Fonk 

Benlanann 

Mertes 

Mathonet 

Bongartz 

Jambrich 

Herwig 

R e h m  

Finkenrneyer 

Holzbach 

Schneider 

Schmitz 

Lindermann 

Jaenich 

Bergmann
Dancke 

Gies 

He ckner 

Welck 

Hackmeister(reissued) 

Mahnken (reissued) 

S a g e s  (reissued) 

Reich (reissued) 

Amtmann (reissued) 

Haentsch 

Heinzelmann 

Schleppinghof f 

Zeese 

Schunck 


TOTALS 	 234,703.96 11,693.26 

* 	 ?his column shms the  date fo r  each account on which Management instructed FPS 
t o  make checks t o  Kuhn o r  AFS and t o  return t o  Phnagement. The record does not 
contain Management instructions on the other accounts. 

** " 10/15/73 Management instructed FPS t o  make checks payable t o  shareholders only 
The accounts marked (reissued) are ones where the check had been made payable t o  
Kuhn or  A . and was reissued i n  the name of the shareholder in accordance with 
Mm%emnt 's instructions of 10/15/73. 



The fraudulent conversion of investors funds w a s  accomplished 

by Kuhn persuading the investor t o  redeem his  shares through Kuhn 

who acted as agent for  the investor as well as holding himself out 

t o  be a representative of Revere. Kuhn would have the investor 

assign the t o  Kuhn and forward the necessary papers t o  Man-

agement o r  FPS. A s  shown i n  the Table a t  least  21 of the f'raudulent 

redemption requests were sent t o  Management which then sent them to  

FPS with instructions t o  liquidate the account and make the check 

payable t o  K u h n  o r  AFS and send the check and a l l  copies of the con- 

flrmations t o  m a g e m n t l s  office. The check would then be deposited 

t o  Kuhn's account at Penco by McFadden o r  someone a t  Management. On 

some occasions K u h n  would personally pick up checks a t  Management's 

off ice.  The mney was then supposed t o  go t o  the investor o r  into 

other investments on behalf of the investor. However, as can be seen 

kom the Table, beginning in July 1972 and continuing thmugh un t i l  

Decerrber 1973, 37 Revere accounts i n  the names of 36 investors with 

a t o t a l  value of $234,703.96, were converted by K u h n .  

I n  order t o  persuade investors to  l iquidate t h e i r  shares and t o  

have the proceeds channeled thmugb Nm, K u h n  W e  numerous untrue 

representations that ,  m n g  other things, K u h n  was a director  of 

Revere; Revere was under investigation by the SEC; the Cchnnission 

had ordered Revere t o  cease operations; i f  a customr redeemed his 

shares and l e f t  the proceeds in Kuhnls control, the proceeds could 
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subsequently be reinvested i n  Revere o r  another fund without any 

sales  charge; the proceeds would have t o  remain i n  Kuhnls hands 

or  i n  a United States bank fo r  a t  leas t  3 months and i n  some cases 

fo r  as long as 12 months, during which time the proceeds would earn 

interest  a t  a r a t e  of 1%per month. 

The misrepresentations were designed t o  have the effect of not 

only persuading investors t o  redeem the i r  shares and entrust the 

proceeds t o  Kuhn, but t o  prevent such investors frm questioning 

any delay i n  receipt of proceeds and t o  prevent others, such as 

Managemnt and WS, f r o m  learning that  the investment proceeds had 

not been received by the investors. 

In June 1972, Kuhn sent a l e t t e r  t o  Hess enclosing a properly 

executed redemption request IP' h m a G e m  shareholder, Friedrich 

I;ohmann (Lohmann) directing that  his account be liquidated and the 

proceeds placed i n  Kuhn's account a t  Penco. Management forwarded 

the request t o  FPS and on July 10, 1972, F'PS prepared a check for  

$22,403.80, t o  the order of Albert and Sylvia Kuhn and forwarded 

it t o  Management and McFadden deposited it into Kuhn's account a t  

Penco on July 11, 1972. In  July 1972 Lohmann received conf'irmation 

that  h i s  shares had been redeemed i n  accordance with his instructions. 

This w a s  the only redemtion received by Management during 1972 which 

-10/ Revere's prospectus, dated March 1, 1972, provides fo r  redemption, 
as follows: "Pursuant t o  the Investment Cowany Act of 1940, the 
Fund w i l l  redeem shares within seven days following the tender t o  
the Fund o r  i ts designated agent of the cert i f icates  representing 
the shares t o  be redeemd i n  proper form for transfer,  duly-,assigned 
in blank or,  where no cert i f icates  have been issued, by a l e t t e r  
of request. In  ei ther  case, with s%nature ~uaranteed by a bank 
o r  a member house of an exchange. (Enphasis added) 
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requested tha t  payment be made t o  K u h n .  Neither Management, Revere, 

FPS nor any individual received any inquiries from Lohmann o r  any 

other customer of K u h n  during 1972 as t o  the disposition of redemption 

proceeds. 

In January 1973, Hess received a similar l e t t e r  f'rom K u h n  re-

questing the redemtion of the  account of another German shareholder, 

Heinz Renninghoff (Renninghoff) . Tnis was processed as before and 

$24,614.73 depositkd In Kuhnls account at  Penco on January 2, 1973. 

Managemnt cabled R e m o f f  t o  confirm tha t  his shares had been 

redeemed and the proceeds paid t o  Kuhn i n  accordance with Rennin@offls 

instructions.  

On January 11, 1973, another German investor 's  account i n  the 

amunt of $30,040.63, was liquidated by Kuhn and the  money deposited 

in h i s  account a t  Penco. However, the  record does not show that  t h i s  

request was addressed t o  Hess o r  referred t o  Managemnt. 

On January 22, 1973, FPS received and forwarded t o  Management 

letters f r o m  both Renninghoff and I;olxnam. Renninghoff expressed 

"surprise" tha t  the check had been sent t o  Kuhn and asked tha t  it be 

sent t o  h im.  Lohmann indicated tha t  he not yet received payment f r o m  

Kuhn and that  Kuhn had to ld  him tha t  the payment had been incorrectly 

"booked" o r  "issued. " Managemnt telegramned both Renningho f f and 

bhmann tha t  the payment on each account had been made i n  accordance 

with t h e i r  respective instructions.  
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In  February 1973, both Management and FPS received corres-

pondence from Westdeutsche Genossenshafts-Zentral bank (Westdeutsche) 

a German Bank, s ta t ing  tha t  neither Lohmann nor Renninghoff had 

received t h e i r  redemption checks. McFkdden confirmed by cable 

that  Kuhn had been paid, but that  Management would speak t o  him 

and "advise thereafter.  I' 

Meanwhile, during February and March 1973, FPS received 6 

redemption requests to ta l l ing  $51,000 which it processed and paid 

t o  Kuhn. 

On March 9, 1973, Kuhn paid an unexpected v i s i t  t o  McFadden at 

his off ice i n  Philadelphia. I n  h i s  testimony McF'adden characterized 

th i s  v i s i t  as a "surprise" because it was the only t im Kuhn vis i ted 

him; Kuhn usually went t o  see Hess on his t r i p s  t o  Philadelphia. Kuhn 

to ld  McFadden (who m t e  a memorandum) that  any fur ther  correspondence 

f r o m  hhnann and Renninghoff relat ing t o  "non-receipt" of t h e i r  pro- 

ceeds should be ignored; tha t  Revere's telegram had arrived at the 

small vil lage where Renninghoff and Lohmann lived while they were away 

on a hunting t r i p  and had become public knowledge, thereby exrbarrassing 

them and making it known that  the Revere investmnts by Lohmann and 

Renninghoff were not, as they stated, worthless. 

Kuhn to ld  McFadden that  the resul t ing correspondence from the 

s h e h o l d e r s  s ta t ing  that  they did not receive t h e i r  proceeds w a s  

an e f fo r t  t o  prove t h e i r  investmnt worthless in order t o  avoid taxes. 

Kuhn noted tha t ,  af'ter sane time had passed, he would write l e t t e r s  

t o  Lohmann and Renninghoff s t a t ing  that  the Revere Investments were 



worthless. K u h f  s a ttitude indicated t o  McFadden that  Management 

should have known be t t e r  i n  the first place and should avoid c o p  

responding with German shareholders under such circumstances due 

t o  the German Tax laws. Kuhn noted that  Lohmann and Renninghoff 

did not understand English anyway. McFadden told Kuhn that  

Management would have no part  of a tax evasion scheme. 

On the same day, March 9, 1973, McFadden repeated Kuhnfs tax 

evasion story t o  Daly and asked whether it could be believed. Daly, 

f e l t  that  Kuhnfs story was believable and both McFadden and D&ly 

expressed r e l i e f  tha t  an explanation had been found as t o  the whereabouts 

of Lohmannfs and Renninghofffs proceeds. Daly and McFadden both 

informed Hess of Kuhnfs tax evasion explanation. 

Sometime durlng the f i r s t  several months of 1973, McFadden 

asked Kuhn t o  provide proof tha t  Lohmann and Renninghoff had received 

t h e i r  funds and Kuhn assured McFadden that  he woiild. However, despite 

McFadden s reminders Kuhn never pmduced the promised evidence. 

On March 23, 1973, Management received vir tual ly  ident ical  l e t t e r s ,  

writ ten in German and typed on the same typewriter, fram Lohmm 

and Renninghoff i n  which they each s ta ted  tha t  on the basis of 

Manafgaentfs January 31, 1973, telegram t h e i r  redemption proceeds 

were deposited t o  the account of Albert and Sylvia Kihn and tha t  t h i s  

took place without t h e i r  knowledge. They s tated tha t  they were not 

yet i n  possession of t h e i r  money and were asking Revere t o  see that 

they received t h e i r  mney. McFadden discussed these l e t t e r s  with 

Daly, who discussed them with Hess and FPSfs counsel. On April 12, 



1973, a f t e r  consultation with Hess and Daly, McFadden wmte i n  

English t o  Lohmann and Renninghoff confirming the redenptions and 

advising them t o  "please recheck t h i s  matter with the F i r s t  Pennsylvania 

Bank. I f  you are st i l l  unable t o  locate your funds, we have no choice, 

of course, but t o  c a l l  for  the assistance of the German Authorities 

t o  help locate the funds ." 
Apparently i n  accordance with McFaddenls instructions i n  h i s  

April 12, 1973, l e t t e r ,  Lohmann and Renninghoff, on April 19, 1973, 

sent ident ical  l e t t e r s  t o  Penco, reci t ing t h e i r  respective redenption 

dates (July 5, 1972, fo r  Lohmann, and January 2, 1973, f o r  Renninghoff), 

s ta t ing  they were not yet i n  possession of t h e i r  mney and asking when 

it would be at t h e i r  disposal. Although FPS notified McFadden of 

these l e t t e r s ,  no one at e i ther  FPS or  Management responded t o  them. 

On June 22, 1973, Lohmann and Renninghoff again wrote ident ical  

l e t t e r s  in German t o  Revere, Attention M r .  McFadden, referr ing t o  the i r  

l e t t e r s  of March 23, 1973 and McFaddenls l e t t e r s  of April 12, 1973, 

and s tat ing tha t  they had m i t t e n  t o  the First Pennsylvania Bank 

but had gotten no reply. They also s tated no reply had been received 

from Revere (McFadden) o r  "your German authorized representatives 

Albert and Sylvia Kuhn - - - " ?he l e t t e r s  s tated that i f  no reply 

had been received by July 30, 1973, t e l l ing  what has happened t o  t h e i r  

money they w i l l  start legal proceedings. ?he l e t t e r s  concluded, "Your 

German authorized representatives, Albert and Sylvia Kuhn have, without 

(the shareholders1) knowledge, had the  equivalent m u n t s  of the l iqui- 

dation deposited i n  your account. A prompt clar i f icat ion would also 

be i n  your interest  since sever& - - - relat ives and acquaintances 



s t i l l  have money invested i n  Revere Fund. " 

On July 3, 1973, Hess and possibly McFadden, met with Kuhn 

a t  Revere's offices t o  discuss the l e t t e r s  which had been received 

f m m  Lohmann and Renninghoff. During t h i s  meeting Kuhn admitted 

that  the June 22, 1973 l e t t e r s  came from h i s  off ice and that  he had 

written them t o  assist b h a n n  and Renninghoff i n  avoiding taxes, 

Hess admonished Kuhn tha t  such ac t iv i t i e s  must cease and tha t  any 

problems with the German tax authorit ies were of no concern t o  

Revere but were between Kuhn and h i s  customers. Kuhn w a s  again 

asked t o  supply evidence that  Lohmann and Renninghoff had received 

t h e i r  proceeds, but no such evidence was ever produced. 

Between January 1973 and April 1973, FPS received and processed 

7 rederrption requests, 6 ofwhich were witnessed by FTS ra ther  than 

being guaranteed by a comnercial bank as  stipulated in Revere 's 

prospectus. See footnotel0, page 22. However, this deficiency w a s  

not acted upon by FTS nor was Management advised by FPS tha t  the pro- 

ceeds had been paid t o  Kuhn upon improperly witnessed signatures. FPS 

accepted and processed these requests without notifying Management 

because of May's mistaken belief tha t  Kuhn at thkt  time w a s  Management's 

"exclusive agent." 

On April 26, 1973, Kuhn hand delivered t o  FPS rederrption requests 

f r o m  Jakob and Maria Fonk (Fonk) and Peter and Anna Bongartz (Bongartz) 

i n  the  respective ancunts of $10,256.99 and $6,135.17. Both of these 

requests, which directed that the check for  the proceeds be paid and 

delivered t o  Kuhn, had shareholders1 signatures which had been "witnessedff 
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by "American Fund Service, Ltd. Investment Banking and Trust Company." 

These requests were i n i t i a l l y  processed by FPS, but M a y ,  upon 

learning that  the signatures were not properly guaranteed, informed 

Kuhn on May 1, 1973, that  5he transactions would be reversed and the 

accounts reinstated unless Kuhn returned within 48 hours with properly 

guaranteed signatures. When Kuhn did not return within 48 howe May 

rescinded the redenptions and reinstated the accounts. Although 

McFadden and Daly agreed tha t  May was correct i n  ref'using to honor 

these two impmperly guaranteed requests, McFadden does not believe 

that he inquired of May as t o  whether there had been any other such 

improperly guaranteed requests presented by and paid t o  Kuhn. However, 

Daly, who disaussed these two improper redemtion requests with Hess, 

believes that  he inquired of May and learned there had been two other 

such redenption requests. On May 8, 1973, Kuhn returned t o  F'PS with 

these two accounts properly guaranteed and received the checks. On 

May 14, 1973, F'PS sent l e t t e r s  t o  the Fonks and Bongartzes confirming 

the payments t o  K u h n  on May 9, 1973. Copies of these l e t t e r s  w e r e  

forwarded t o  Management on May 14,  1973. 

As a result of the problems it had encountered with ILOhmann 

and Renninghoff and the inpmperly guaranteed redemtion requests, 

F'PS adopted new redemption procedures which included having German 

redemtions appmved by May's supervisor, and sending 6onMrmation 

l e t t e r s  in English t o  the redeeming German shareholders. 



On July 23, 1973, Management and FPS received a l e t t e r  i n  

German dated July 16, 1973, from Fonk. The l e t t e r ,  which was 

translated in to  English sometime between July 23 and August 7, 

1973, stated that  the Fonks had not yet received the i r  money 

and asked whether K u h n  had the i r  money, w h a t  they could do t o  

get the i r  money back, and whether FPS could ass i s t  them. On 

August 21, 1973, before ei ther  Management o r  FPS had acted on 

Fonksf JiiLy 16th l e t t e r ,  F'PS received another l e t t e r  form the 

Fonks written in German and dated August 16, 1973, which stated 

in its entirety: "I declare the l e t t e r  which you received from me 

t o  be rescinded; it was a misunderstanding." Neither Management mr 

FPS took any action on ei ther  of the Fonk l e t t e r s .  

On October 1, 1973, F'PS received a l e t t e r  from the Fonksf 

Gennan attorney which stated that  the Fonks had not received the i r  

proceeds nor any word concerning the proceeds subsequent t o  the 

May 14,  1973, confirmation l e t t e r  f h m  FPS. ?he attorney asked 

whether the proceeds had been transferred t o  another bank o r  turned 

over t o  K u h n .  Management responded t o  this l e t t e r  by sending the 

attorney copies of correspondence and translations thereof relat ing 

t o  the Fonksf redenption. In  an acccxnpanying l e t t e r ,  written i n  

German, Managemnt s tated that the "proceeds of this liquidation 

were paid i n  s t r i c t  accordance with the instructions of your clients." 



On Septenber 10, 1973, Managemnt received a group of 5 

redemption requests each directing that  the check f o r  the proceeds 

be paid and delivered t o  AFS o r  Kuhn. Management forwarded these 

t o  FF'S f o r  processing and, upon receipt of the checks and confirmations 

to ta l l ing  $22,590 forwarded them on t o  Kuhn. Also, on September 

10, 1973, Managemnt received a l e t t e r  f r o m  Alfred Heckner (Heckner), 

complaining that  because of Kuhnls fa i lure  t o  follow instructions 

t o  stop his systematic withdrawal plan and t o  reinvest h i s  checks 

i n  June, July and August, 1973, he found it necessary t o  wr i t e  t o  

Revere direct ly about the matter. 

Between July 6, 1972 and September 10, 1973, som 23 German 

shareholders had redeemed t h e i r  accounts f o r  a t o t a l  of approxirrately 

$205,000, a l l  of which had been paid t o  Kuhn. In addition, at leas t  

3 different shareholders had complained of not receiving t h e i r  p m  

ceeds and FPS had discovered several instances where Kuhn had inproperly 

at tested t o  shareholders signatures i n  an effort  t o  obtain the proceeds 

f 'mm t h e i r  accounts. However, Management did not take any special 

action o r  change any of the procedures fo r  the  redemption of the 

German accounts u n t i l  the beginning of October 1973, and then FPS 

w a s  t o ld  only t o  "keep and eye" on German redemptions. 

By l e t t e r  dated October 6, 1973, Anita Lindermann (Lindermann) , 
one of the group of redemptions paid on September 10, 1973, wrote t o  

Penco inquiring as t o  the whereabouts of the $13,866.94, which she 

had not received. A t  this t im Management apparently became concerned 

that  Kuhn w a s  "being dilatory" in forwarding the pmceeds t o  customers. 

http:$13,866.94


Therefore, on October 15, 1973, following consultation with Hess and 

Daly, Managerrent effected the  following changes i n  i ts  procedures with 

reference t o  f'uture redemption requests which instructed tha t  checks 

fo r  proceeds be made payableand delivered t o  K u h n  o r  AFS: 

1. FPS was instructed tha t  a l l  such checks should be made payable 

t o  the  individual shareholder, notwithstanding h i s  contrary request, 

although the  checks would s t i l l  be delivered t o  K u h n  i n  accordance 

with the shareholder's instructions.  

2 .  A l l  such f'uture redeeming shareholders, a s  well as those who 

had redeewd i n  September and the first half  of October, were sent 

letters i n  German which advised that  the checks for  the proceeds had 

been delivered t o  K u h n  o r  AF'S and payable e i t he r  t o  the  shareholder 

o r  Kuhn /AFS.  

3. Redemption checks payable t o  AFS which had been prepared but 

not delivered as of October 15, 1973, were cancelled and reissued i n  

the name of the  redeeming shareholder. 

4. A letter dated October 15, 1973, signed by Hess, was sent t o  

K u h n  i n  which it was s ta ted  tha t  redemption procedures had been discussed 

at a meeting of the Revere board of directors  and a determination had 

been made tha t  henceforth all redemption checks must be mde payable 

t o  the registered shareholders. 

This l e t t e r  of October 15, 1973, f r o m  Hess t o  K u h n  was prepared 

by Hess, Daly and McFadden and informed K u h n  that  the Revere board of 

directors  had held a me t ing  on that  day and determined that henceforth 



a l l  redemption checks must be made payable only t o  the registered 

shareholders. A s  a matter of fact such determination had not been 

mde by the board although copies of the l e t t e r  were subsequently sent 

t o  board members. The reason for  s ta t ing  that  it w a s  a board deter- 

mination w a s  i n  the event K u h n  became angry about it he would have 

t o  becom angry a t  the board rather than a t  Hess. Also, Hess, 

Daly and McFadden intended that  the change i n  redenption procedures 

w a s  t o  be applicable only t o  shareholders redeeming throw K u h n  

and not to all shareholders i n  general as stated in the l e t t e r .  None 

of the German shareholders was advised of the change. It w a s  May's 

understanding that  Management was going t o  see t o  it that  the r e  

demption checks were delivered t o  the shareholders as  well, but he 

w a s  mistaken as this was not Management's intention. ?he checks 

continued t o  be delivered t o  K u h n .  When the new procedure w a s  decided 

upon bly stated that  i f  K u h n  w a s  "trying something" then the new pro- 

cedure would require him t o  "com-dt forgery. " 

Between October 15 and 19, 1973, Management received 5 redenption 

requests as enclosures t o  l e t t e r s  written by K u h n  directing that the 

proceeds be-made payable and delivered t o  K u h n  o r  AFS. Managemnt, 

i n  i ts transmittal t o  F'PS directed that  the checks be mde payable t o  

the shareholders "per our new redemption procedures. " However, as these 

checks had already been issued t o  K u h n  they were cancelled and reissued 

i n  the nams of the individual shareholders, but were returned t o  Manage-

m n t  which then delivered them t o  K u h n .  (See Table on page 20 and accounts 

marked reissued on 10/18/73). 



On October 29, 1973, Management received another l e t t e r  from 

Heckner, t h i s  time s ta t ing  that  while he had received Management's 

confirmation l e t t e r  of October 18, 1973, he had not heard f r o m  

Kuhn and he had not received his  redemption check. (Hecknerls account 

had been redeerned on October 3, 1973). Heckner asserted tha t  Kuhn 

was not en t i t l ed  t o  receive his mney and he could not understand 

why Management would send the check "to the wrong address." He stated 

tha t  "as (Managemnt's) representative (Kuhn) is answerable t o  (Manage-

ment ) and i s  a part  of (Management's ) organization." McFadden called 

Daly and read Heckner's l e t t e r  t o  him. On October 30, 1973 Daly wrote 

a l e t t e r  t o  McFadden which began: "Dear Mike": "Regarding your German 

l e t t e r ,  which disturbs, but I regret t o  say, does not m z e  me, I think 

a response along the following l ines  is indicated." There are then 

2 paragraphs of a suggested response. The l e t t e r  then concludes, "You 

w i l l ,  of course, at the same tirne write t o  Albert (Kuhn), sen- him 

a copy of his c l ien t ' s  l e t t e r  and a request for  an explanation. I am 

very much af ra id  that  this wi l l  not be the last of these, although I 

hope I 'm wrong. " 

On Nover&er 1, 1973, McFadden responded t o  Heckner and on Nover&er 

2, 1973, m t e  t o  Kuhn as follows: "Enclosed please find a copy o f a  

l e t t e r  we received f'rom Alf'red Heckner. I would appreciate an explanation 

as t o  why he would write us  such a le t te r . "  

On the same day, November 2, 1973, Management received from Kuhn a 

redenption request f o r  another shareholder (Schleppinghoff) directing 



t ha t  the  proceeds check be paid and delivered t o  AFS. This request 

was processed by FPS which made the check payable t o  the  shareholder 

in accordance with the new procedure adopted on October 15, 1973. 

However, on Noveher 8, 1973, Management transmitted the check, which 

w a s  f o r  $2,059, t o  Kuhn. On November 20, 1973, t h i s  check w a s  deposited 

in KW1s account at Penco. The check bears endorsement signatures 

of the  shareholders, AFS, Kuhn and Sylvia Kuhn, but it w a s  not endorsed 

by the  hand of  the  shareholder. 

Sometime during t h i s  period, i n  October o r  Novmer  1973, Daly, 

a f t e r  conferring with Hess and McFadden, decided t o  re ta in  a German 

lawyer, Herbert Fassbender, t o  investigate the  s i tua t ion  in Germany. 

Fassbender began looking i n t o  the s i tua t ion  i n  November o r  December 

1973. Sometim p r io r  t o  the h i r ing  of Fassbender, between 1970 and 

1973, Daly cannot r e c a l l  the date, - Daly had asked another German 

attorney,Horst Niebler, t o  give Managemnt a "reading" on Kuhn and 

his operations because of Management's "strained relationships" with 

Kuhn. Although Niebler had reported tha t  Kuhn "had a bad business 

reputa t ion  and had placed stockholders i n  unfavorable investments," . , 

nothing was done about Nieblerl s report. Apparently, the pr incipal  

reason nothing was done w a s  t ha t  Kuhn found out about it and made 

strenous objections t o  Hess and Management who then abandoned the 

-- - . - -- . - - - ---

-11/ D a l y ,  who ~ ~ e a r e d  t o  be a s t r a i & t f o r w a ~  witness, t e s t i f i e d  
tha t  he mt Neibler i n  connection with the enactment of  the  
G e m  Foreign Investment Law which became effective on November 
1, 1969, and which Neibler t ransla ted f o r  a Philadelphia l a w  firm. 
'herefore, h i s  employment of Neibler would have t o  have been between 
late 1969 o r  early 1970 and the fa l l  of 1973. 



Also, sonetime during t h i s  period between 1970 and 1973, Daly 

can only r eca l l  tha t  it was prior  t o  1974, two Revere shareholders 

f r o m  Belgian, v is i ted  Daly i n  Philadelphia. They told Daly that  

Kuhn was saying that he was a director of Revere; that Revere was 

being investigated by the SEC, which could lead t o  disciplinary 

action against Revere by the SEC; and that Revere was an unsound 

continuing investment. Daly reported t h i s  conversation t o  Hess 

and e i ther  McFadden or  Ursula Schaufler, an employee at Financial. 

When Kuhn w a s  asked about h i s  purported statements he stated that  

the Belgian shareholders were . Apparently, no rurther steps 

were taken t o  follow up on the allegations which indicated violations 

of the federal securi t ies  laws and the NASD Rules of Fair  Practice 

on the part  of Kuhn. 

On November 19, 1973, Management received another l e t t e r  fmn 

Heckner, dated November 15, 1973 i n  which he stated tha t  Kuhn had 

to ld  him that  his proceeds would be deposited i n  an Arrrerican Bank 

and tha t  he(Heckner) would never have signed a redenption request . . 

containing instructions tha t  the proceeds be paid t o  AFS. In addition 

t o  inquiring as t o  the nature of AFS, Heclcner s tated that Kuhn had 

called him repeatedly and had stated that (1) Revere "has diff icul t ies";  

(2)  Revere's management is bad and therefore the value of the shares 

is low; (3) proceedings by the SEC are "in the wings because of erroneous 

valuation of the shares;"(4) the value of Revere's shares would fal l  

even more; (5) one could make money by redeeming and reinvesting a t  



lower prices within the next s i x  months with no sales charges; 

(6) the redemption proceeds would remain i n  an Amrican bank unt i l  

the SEC examined Revere1 s valuation methods; and (7) Kuhn w a s  a 

director of Revere and w a s  well informed of everything. None of 

these assertions were t m e .  Hecher concluded by s tat ing that  he 

had written several l e t t e r s  t o  Kuhn demanding his mney and that  

i f  settlement were not made by November 18, 1973, he would inform 

the Distr ict  Attorneyls off ice of forgery and embezzlement. 

After responding t o  Hecher, McFadden again sent Kuhn a copy 

of Hecherls  Novenber 1973 l e t t e r  as well as a copy of Management's 

response. Also enclosed with these l e t t e r s  t o  Kuhn w a s  s t i l l  another 

redenption check i n  the amount of $2,274 made payable t o  another 

redeeming shareholder (Zeese) . In his l e t t e r  t o  Kuhn, McFadden said, 

"We t h o a t  you might be interested i n  the enclosed l e t t e r  we received 

fmm A l M Heckner and our response t o  his l e t t e r .  " However, McFadden 

did not ask Kuhn f o r  an explanation of Hecknerls allegations. 

?t.ro days la ter ,  on Novenber 30, 1973, Managemnt received a l e t t e r  

f m m  a s ixth conplaining shareholder, K u r t  Gies, who also s tated that 

(1)Kuhn had held himself out as a Revere director, (2)  Kuhn had offered 

t o  redeem the shareholderls shares and reinvest within s i x  months without 

sales  charge and (3) the shareholder feared Kuhn had defrauded him and 

converted h i s  mney. 

On Decenber 3, 1973, Management received another l e t t e r  f m m  Hecher, 



t h i s  letter asserting tha t  Heckner had turned the matter of h i s  

redemption check over t o  a lawyer and the court and that  Kuhn st i l l  

had in his possession two "systematic withdrawal checks" which Heckner 

had given Kuhn f o r  forwarding t o  Revere. Management, on Septenber 

10, 1973, had been apprised by Heckner of the fact  that  he had 

delivered these two checks t o  Kuhn f o r  reinvestment. Management 

responded t o  Hecknerls last l e t t e r  by s ta t ing  that  the two checks had 

been endorsed by Heckner over t o  MS. In fact ,  the two systematic 

withdrawal checks, each in the amount of $165.00, are endorsed with 

Hecknerls name written on a typewriter, by AFS, and by Sylvia Kuhn. 

On June 5, 1974, as a result of Hecknerls assertion that  the endorse- 

rnents of h i s  name on the checks had not been typed by him o r  with 

his consent, ITS, a f t e r  determining tha t  the endorsemnts on Hecknerl s 

checks were forgeries, transmitted a check t o  Heckner in the m u n t  of 

$330.00 representing reirbursement f o r  his two checks. 

After receiving Hecknerls l e t t e r  on December 3, 1973, Management 

did not send any mre redenption checks to  Kuhn. Thus, on Deceder 3, 

1973, although Management received a redemption request as an enclosure 

t o  a l e t t e r  fmm Kuhn directing that  the redenption check be mde 

payable t o  and delivered t o  AFS, the check was made payable t o  the 

shareholder (Schunck) i n  the  amount of $864.54, and on Decenber 10,  

1973, w a s  transmitted t o  the shareholder. However, no explanation 
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was given t o  the shareholder as  t o  why his  redemption instructions 

were being disregarded. 

Kuhn was arrested by the German authorities i n  January 1974. 

On December 8, 1975, he w a s  found by the H i &  X Court of Criminal 

Jurisdiction of the Higher Court of Dusseldorf t o  be criminally 

l i ab le  fo r  continuous fai lure t o  keep bookkeeping records, fa i lure  

t o  draw up balance sheets, fai lure t o  f i l e  fo r  bankruptcy in three 

cases, fai lure t o  turn over social security taxes f r o m  payroll de- 

ductions, and "partly continuous h u d  i n  forty cases ." (See Table 

on page '20). Arrpng the defrauded shareholders were bhmann, Reminghoff, 

a l l  of the shareholders whose signatures were improperly guaranteed, 

a l l  of the shareholders who complained t o  Managemnt, all of the share- 

holders whose checks were mde payable t o  the shareholder but delivered 
p2/ -

t o  Kuhn, -and even the shareholder (Schunck) whose check w a s  made 

~ a y a b l e  and delivered t o  Nm without any explanation as t o  why Manage-

ment w a s  deviating f l a n  routine practices .13/The German court found 

that  Kuhn w a s  able t o  accomplish his fraudulent objectives by making 

the following false and misleading s ta temnts  t o  many of the shareholders : 

12-/ 	Kuhn and h is  wife merely endorsed these checks over t o  AFS. 
13-/ 	After the shareholder received h i s  check, Kuhn w a s  able t o  

convince him that  he should allow Kuhn t o  reinvest it f o r  him. 



- 39 -


1. that Kuhn was a director of one o r  more flunds, including 

Revere; 

2. tha t  one o r  m r e  of such f'unds, including Revere, w a s  

under investigation by the Comission; 

3. that the Corrnnission had ordered one or  m r e  of such f'unds, 

including Revere, t o  cease operations; 

4. that  i f  a customer redeemd Ns shares and l e f t  the proceeds 

in Kuhnts control, the proceeds could subsequently be reinvested 

in the old f'und o r  another f'und without any sales charge; 

5. that  the proceeds would be required t o  remain i n  Kuhnts hands, 

o r  in a United States bank, fo r  a period of at least  3 and in som 

cases as many as  12 months, during which tim such proceeds would e m  

in teres t  at a r a t e  of 1%per mnth. 

Kuhn, whose conviction was upheld on appeal, was sentenced t o  f ive 

years i m p r i s o m t .  Sylvia Kuhn receiveda one year sentence. 
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Each of  t h e  r e s p o n d e n t s  h a s  advanced a  number of 

a rguments ,  many of  which o v e r l a p ,  a s  t o  why t h e y  cannot  

be found t o  have v i o l a t e d  t h e  a n t i f r a u d  p r o v i s i o n s  of  t h e  

Exchange Act ,  a s  charged i n  t h e  Order .  T h e i r  p r i n c i p a l  

common argument i s  t h a t  t h e r e  was no way t h e y  cou ld  have 

known t h a t  Kuhn was an  embezzler ;  t h a t  t h e y  a c t e d  i n  good 

f a i t h  and i n  accordance  w i t h  a c c e p t e d  b u s i n e s s  p r a c t i c e s ;  

t h a t  t h e i r  conduct  was r e a s o n a b l e  under  t h e  c i rcumstances ;  

and t h a t  t h e y  engaged i n  no t r a n s a c t i o n ,  a c t ,  p r a c t i c e  o r  

c o u r s e  of  b u s i n e s s  which o p e r a t e d  a s  a f r a u d  upon t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  

o f  Revere Fund. 

Throughout t h e  p r o c e e d i n g  and i n  t h e i r  b r i e f s  respon- 

d e n t s  have t a k e n  t h e  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  w h i l e  t h e y  a d m i t t e d l y  had 

problems w i t h  Kuhn a lmost  from t h e  beg inn ing  of  h i s  employment 

as a d e a l e r  t h e r e  was n o t h i n g  s o  unusua l  about  t h e s e  r o u t i n e  

d i f f i c u l t i e s  t o  e i t h e r  a r o u s e  t h e i r  s u s p i c i o n s  tha t  he 

was a p o t e n t i a l  embezzler  o r  t o  a l e r t  them t o  f u r t h e r  p r e c a u t i o n s  

f o r  t h e  p r o t e c t i o n  o f  s h a r e h o l d e r s .  I n  suppor t  o f  t h i s  p o s i t i o n  

i t  i s  argued t h a t  Management had n o t h i n g  t o  do  w i t h  t h e  r e -

dmptims, hav ing  d e l e g a t e d  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  them t o  FPS, 

and t h a t  Hess was n o t  an  o f f i c e r ,  d i r e c t o r  o r  employee of 

Management, and,  t h e r e f o r e ,  was i n s u l a t e d  from a l l  e v e n t s  

o c c u r r i n g  between Management, Kuhn and FPS f o r  t h e  p e r i o d  from 

1966 u n t i l  1974. 

However, t h e  f a c t  i s  t h a t  Hess was invo lved  i n  a l l  o f  

t h e  a c t i v i t i e s  and was undoubtedly  t h e  key f i g u r e  i n  t h e  v a r i o u s  



e n t e r p r i s e s  which made up t h e  Revere  complex. He was P r e s i d e n t  

and a d i r e c t o r  o f  Revere  Fund; Chairman and T r e a s u r e r  o f  

Hess, Gran t  & F r a z i e r ,  a New York S t o c k  Exchange member f i r m ,  

and Chairman o f  P h i l a d e l p h i a  F i n a n c i a l  Management, which was 

t h e  r e g i s t e r e d  i n v e s t m e n t  a d v i s e r  f o r  t h e  Fund. Management, 

which had 4 t o  5 employees ,  s h a r e d  o f f i c e s  w i t h  t h e  Fund which  

had no  employees ,  o n l y  d i r e c t o r s .  Hess was n o t  p h y s i c a l l y  

l o c a t e d  on t h e  p r e m i s e s  o f  Management o r  Fund b u t  had a n  o f f i c e  

n e x t  door  on t h e  same f l o o r  w i t h  Hess, Grant  & F r a z i e r .  

When h e  t e s t i f i e d  a t  t h e  h e a r i n g  Hess s t a t e d  t h a t  he had  

n o t h i n g  t o  do  w i t h  t h e  h i r i n g  of  t h e  e x e c u t i v e s  a t  Management, 

t h a t  i t  was done by t h e  Fund boa rd  o f  d i r e c t o r s .  However, 

when he was q u e s t i o n e d  by t h e  D i v i s i o n  d u r i n g  t h e  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  

p r i o r  t o  t h e  p r o c e e d i n g ,  h e  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he  h i r e d  Sanders ,  

who become p r e s i d e n t  o f  Management, and McFadden, who r e p l a c e d  

S a n d e r s  and became v i c e - p r e s i d e n t  o f  Management. Hess t e s t i f i e d  

t h a t  i n  1972 McFadden was t h e  p r i n c i p a l  o f  Management and t h a t  

h e  l e f t  i n  1974 "because  we were r u n n i n g  o u t  o f  money. We 

r e p l a c e d  him w i t h  G i l b e r t  Thomas (who) was a n  employee a l s o  o f  

Hess, Gran t  & F r a z i e r  and w e  s a v e d  a f a i r  amount o f  o u t g o  c a s h  

by d o i n g  t h a t . "  Hess t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he  had t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  

f o r  making t h e  d e c i s i o n  t o  r e p l a c e  McFadden a l t h o u g h  he d i d  n o t  

know what p o s i t i o n  he h e l d  t h a t  would g i v e  him t h e  a u t h o r i t y  t o  

h i r e  McFadden o r  h i s  r e p l a c e m e n t  b u t  t h e r e  was a vaccum t h e r e  

t h a t h a d  t o  b e  f i l l e d .  Hess s a i d  t h a t  he d i d  n o t  have o v e r a l l  

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  Management and t h a t  he  was n o t  i n v o l v e d  i n  



- 4 2  -

Management; t h a t  Fund had a c o n t r a c t u a l  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  

Management. However, "You obse rve  whether  t h e  work 's  b e i n g  

done o r  i s n ' t  b e i n g  done.  I mean, i f  I go back t h e r e  and I 

s e e  s t u f f  p i l e d  a m i l e  h i g h  on t h e  d e s k s ,  and no employees 

i n  t h e r e ,  I ' d  know something was wrong." 

McFadden t e s t i f i e d  t h a t ,  " A s  a p r a c t i c a l  m a t t e r ,  M r .  Hess 

was t h e r e .  He p e r s o n a l l y  d i d n ' t  own any of t h e  Management 

Company, b u t  h i s  f a m i l y  d i d ,  o r  does ,  bu t  i t  i s  tough t o  d i s -  

t i n g u i s h  between t h e  Fund and t h e  Management company due t o  t h e  

s i z e ,  and M r .  Hess was P r e s i d e n t  of  t h e  Fund and Chairman of 

t h e  Board." 

May t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  McFadden was no t  t h e  t o p  d e c i s i o n  maker 

a t  Management. "We would have d i s c u s s i o n s  w i t h  Mike (McFadden) 

and Mike was convinced how something shou ld  be done and t h e n  

h e  went back t o  Revere and t a l k e d  t o  o t h e r s  and changed h i s  mind. 

Mike would have i n d i c a t e d  t o  me each  t i m e  t h a t  he had t a l k e d  

t o  e i t h e r  Ed Daly o r  B i l l  Hess about  a g i v e n  t h i n g  and t h e y  

viewed something d i f f e r e n t .  And t h i s  i s  t h e  way he i s  go ing  

t o  do i t ." 

Almost from t h e  b e g i n n i n g  of  Kuhnfs  employment t h e r e  was a 

c o n s t a n t  r u n n i n g  b a t t l e  w i t h  Kuhn. A s  Hess t e s t i f i e d :  "During 

t h i s  p e r i o d  (1967-69),  M r .  Kuhn was a v e r y  a c t i v e  salesman f o r  

t h e  Fund. He r e t a i l e d  a l o t  o f  s h a r e s  f o r  t h e  Fund and i n  t h e  

o p e r a t i o n  o f  t h i s  b u s i n e s s ,  I would n o t  s a y  t h e r e  were problems,  

t h e r e  were d i f f i c u l t i e s  t h a t  a r o s e  because  o f  a language b a r r i e r ,  

because  o f  a d i s t a n c e  b a r r i e r  and t ime  d i f f e r e n c e  i n  t h e r e ,  and 

t h e r e  j u s t  seemed t o  be a d i f f e r e n t  way of  o p e r a t i n g  a  b u s i n e s s  



i n  Germany, compared t o  a d h e r i n g  t o  t h e  r a t h e r  r i g i d  r u l e s  

t h a t  govern  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  b u s i n e s s  i n  t h e  United S t a t e s . "  

Although Hess down p layed  t h e  problems w i t h  Kuhn, t h e  

r e c o r d  shows t h e y  were numerous and u n p l e a s a n t .  A l l  o f  t h e  

w i t n e s s e s  who came i n t o  c o n t a c t  w i t h  Kuhn t e s t i f i e d  concern ing  

t h e  d i f f i c u l t y  o f  d o i n g  b u s i n e s s  w i t h  him bu t  pe rhaps  D a l y  

summed it up t h e  b e s t :  

" M r .  Kuhn was a d i f f i c u l t  p e r s o n a l i t y .  He was a 
s u c c e s s f u l  sa leman,  who, l i k e  I g u e s s  most success -
f u l  salesmen of  my a c q u a i n t a n c e ,  cou ld  be charming 
when he was s e l l i n g  something ,  o r  when r e l a x i n g  pe r -  
s o n a l l y ,  and who could  b e  v e r y  d i f f i c u l t  when he was 
c r o s s e d .  He f u r t h e r m o r e ,  had a r a t h e r  a u t h o r i t a r i a n  
approach  t o  peop le  he r e g a r d e d  as u n d e r l i n g s  o r  
incompe ten t s ,  and sometimes t h e  d e f i n i t i o n  of  incom- 
p e t e n c e  was t h o s e  who d i d n ' t  s e e  i t  h i s  way." 

The pr imary  f a c t  i n  t h i s  c a s e  which t h e  r e c o r d  b r i n g s  

c l e a r l y  i n t o  f o c u s  i s  t h a t  t h e r e  was n e v e r  any c o n t r o l  o v e r  

Kuhn o r  h i s  a c t i v i t i e s .  During t h e  a c t i v e  s e l l i n g  p e r i o d ,  

1966 t o  October  1969, t h e r e  were numerous i n c i d e n t s  i n d i c a t i n g  

t h i s  l a c k  o f  c o n t r o l ,  i n c l u d i n g  t h e  R e g u l a t i o n  T v i o l a t i o n s ,  

t h e  NASD r e p o r t ,  t h e  Haskins & S e l l s  r e p o r t s ,  t h e  f a i l u r e  t o  

i n s i s t  on Kuhn keeping books and r e c o r d s ,  t h e  u n s u c c e s s f u l  u s e  

o f  t h e  Dusse ldor f  Bank a c c o u n t s ,  t h e  c a s h  b a s i s  f o r  Kuhn's 

cus tomers  t e m p o r a r i l y  r e s o r t e d  t o  by t h e  Fund board ,  t h e  i n a b i l i t y  

t o  r e c o n c i l e  cus tomers f  a c c o u n t s  and t h e  e v e n t u a l  t ' s e t t l e m e n t n  

of $11,934 i n  October  1969. During t h i s  p e r i o d  Sanders ,  Hess and 

D a l y  a l l  v i s i t e d  Germany a t  d i f f e r e n t  t i m e s  and saw Kuhn b u t  no 

i n q u i r y  was made concern ing  him n o r  was any demand made f o r  h i s  

books and r e c o r d s .  



I n  1970, when Kuhn's demands f o r  more commissions and 

t h e  d i s c r e p a n c i e s  i n  t h e  Dresdner  Bank account  r e s u l t e d  i n  

McFaddenls e x h a u s t i v e  memo, n o t h i n g  was done t o  b r i n g  Kuhn 

under  c o n t r o l .  I n  f a c t  t h e  memo s u g g e s t s ,  and a p p a r e n t l y  

eve ryone  concerned went a l o n g  w i t h  i t ,  no t  t o  r o c k  t h e  boa t  

by d o i n g  a n y t h i n g  t o  i n v i t e  an  SEC o r  NASD i n q u i r y .  

Subsequent  t o  October  1969,  when Kuhn cou ld  no l o n g e r  pro-  

duce any s u b s t a n t i a l  amount of  b u s i n e s s  h e  c o n t i n u e d  t o  i n t i m i -  

d a t e  Management, Hess and a l l  concerned by t h r e a t e n i n g  redempt ions .  

Dur ing  1970-71 May informed McFadden t h a t  many o f  t h e  r edempt ions  

coming i n  from Kuhn's cus tomers  were u n u s u a l  because  t h e y  

r e q u e s t e d  t r a n s f e r  t o  a n o t h e r  fund .  Also ,  i n  1971  compla in t s  

were r e c e i v e d  from German s h a r e h o l d e r s  conce rn ing  t h e i r  a c c o u n t s  

and m i s r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  Kuhn and h i s  sa lesmen were making as 

t o  t h e i r  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  Revere Fund. However, a s i d e  from 

r e p l y i n g  t o  ' t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  ' l e t t e r s  n o t h i n g  was done.  

I n  a d d i t i o n  t o  f a i l i n g  t o  e s t a b l i s h  any c o n t r o l  o v e r  Kuhnf s 
i 
i 
i a c t i v i t i e s  as t h e y  p e r t a i n e d  t o  r e c o r d  keep ing  o r  "home o f f i c e "  
i 

d e a l i n g s ,  r e s p o n d e n t s  d i d  n o t h i n g  t o  keep s h a r e h o l d e r s  informed 

o f  e v e n t s  such  as t h e  t e r m i n a t i o n  of  t h e  e x c l u s i v e  c o n t r a c t  w i t h  

Kuhn. T h i s  f a i l u r e  t o  make d i s c l o s u r e s  t o  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  

e n a b l e d  Kuhn t o  keep them de luded  as t o  h i s  a c t u a l  s t a t u s  w i t h  

Revere Fund. Without e x c e p t i o n  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  who complained 

were o f  t h e  o p i n i o n  t h a t  Kuhn was Fund 's  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e ,  o r  a n  

o f f i c e r ,  o r  a d i r e c t o r ,  and  t h a t  i n  d e a l i n g  w i t h  him t h e y  were,  
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i n  e f f e c t ,  d e a l i n g  d i r e c t l y  wi th  t h e  Fund. Th i s  l a c k  of  

communication enab led  Kuhn t o  d i s t r i b u t e  c i r c u l a r  l e t t e r s  

d a t e d  J u l y  27, August 8 ,  August 20 and October  1, 1973, 

recommending t h a t  s h a r e h o l d e r s  l i q u i d a t e  t h e i r  Fund s h a r e s  

and r e i n v e s t  t h e  p roceeds  through AFS. 

Daly t e s t i f k e d  t h a t  when he p repared  t h e  t e r m i n a t i o n  

agreement between Management and Kuhn i n  September 1969, he 

i n c l u d e d  a s t a t e m e n t  t h a t  Kuhn would a b i d e  by NASD r e g u l a t i o n s  

and a  copy of  t h e  NASD Rules of F a i r  P r a c t i c e  was appended 

t o  t h e  agreement .  How t h i s  was go ing  t o  have any e f f e c t  

on Kuhn when t h e r e  were no means of  e n f o r c i n g  it i s  no t  c l e a r .  

One o t h e r  a r e a  of  t h e  Management-Kuhn r e l a t i o n s  where 

Management d i s c l a i m s  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  i s  t h e  p r o c e s s i n g  of 

redempt ions .  Once Management had d e l e g a t e d  t h e  p r o c e s s i n g  t o  

t h e  Pennsy lvan ia  Bank i t  took  t h e  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  i t  no l o n g e r  

need be concerned.  The i n s t r u c t i o n s  f o r  redeeming a s  s e t  

f o r t h  i n  t h e  p r o s p e c t u s  and quoted  h e r e i n  i n  Note 1 0 ,  on page 

22, a r e  f a i r l y  r o u t i n e  a s  concerns  l o c a l  s h a r e h o l d e r s ,  bu t  

i t  was n o t  u n t i l  t h e  May 1, 1977, p r o s p e c t u s  t h a t  r e f e r e n c e  

was made concern ing  f o r e i g n  redempt ions .  Respondents s t r o n g l y  

a r g u e  t h a t  a s  long  a s  redemption r e q u e s t s  had been p r o p e r l y  

w i t n e s s e d ,  i . e . ,  by a bank o r  member f i r m ,  and t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r  

r e q u e s t e d  payment t o  Kuhn, i t  had t o  be honored,  d e s p i t e  com-

p l a i n t s  and q u e s t i o n s  of  a u t h e n t i c i t y  t h a t  a r o s e  d u r i n g  1973. 

T h i s  r e s u l t e d  i n  t h e  i r o n y  of  Management send ing  c o p i e s  o f  

Heckner 's  l e t t e r s ,  a l l e g i n g  m i s r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  by Kuhn and 



-46 -

s t a t i n g  he would inform t h e  D i s t r i c t  A t t o r n e y l s  o f f i c e  of  

f o r g e r y  and embezzlement,  t o  Kuhn and e n c l o s i n g  t h e r e w i t h  a 

redempt ion  check f o r  $2,274,  payab le  t o  a n o t h e r  s h a r e h o l d e r ,  

which was a l s o  embezzled. 

Although t h e  f i rs t  redempt ion  of  a s h a r e h o l d e r l s  account  

which was c o n v e r t e d  o c c u r r e d  i n  J u l y  1972, i t  was n o t  u n t i l  

J a n u a r y  1973, when t h e  Lohmann and Renninghoff  l e t t e r s  were 

r e c e i v e d  t h a t  Management l e a r n e d  of  i t .  Although t h e s e  t r a n s -  

a c t i o n s  have been d e s c r i b e d  h e r e t o f o r e ,  t o g e t h e r  w i t h  Kuhn's 

t a x  e v a s i o n  e x p l a n a t i o n ,  which was b e l i e v e d  by Daly,  Hess and 

McFadden, t h i s  e p i s o d e  d e s e r v e s  c l o s e r  s c r u t i n y ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  

as i t  s h o u l d  have a l e r t e d  r e s p o n d e n t s  t o  a more c a r e f u l  exam- 

i n a t i o n  o f  t h e  f a c t s  invo lved  and t h e  obvious  i n c o n s i s t e n c i e s  

i n  Kuhn's s t o r y .  

McFaddenls memo i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  Kuhn blamed Management f o r  

s e n d i n g  a  t e l e g r a m  t o  Lohmann and Renninghoff which became 

p u b l i c  and s e r v e d  as n o t i c e  t h a t  t h e i r  Revere s h a r e s  had v a l u e  

and were n o t  w o r t h l e s s  a s  t h e y  were c l a i m i n g  f o r  t a x  purposes .  

However, t h e  Lohmann l e t t e r  o f  January  18,  1973, s a y s :  " p l e a s e  

c a b l e  immedia te ly ."  Thereupon, Mangement s e n t  i t s  t e l e g r a m  

on January  31,  1973. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  Westdeutsche Bank, 

a p p a r e n t l y  s h a r e h o l d e r s '  bank, s e n t  a l e t t e r  t o  Management on 

February  2 ,  1973, fo l lowed  by a  c a b l e  on February  15 ,  1973,  

i n q u i r i n g  as t o  t h e  whereabouts  o f  t h e  p roceeds .  Management 

responded by t e l e g r a m  o f  February  1 6 ,  1973,  s a y i n g  t h a t  Kuhn 

h a s  been p a i d .  It seems u n l i k e l y  t h a t  s h a r e h o l d e r s  would be 



r e q u e s t i n g  t e l e g r a m s  and e n l i s t i n g  t h e  a i d  of  a bank i f  t h e y  

were t r y i n g  t o  h i d e  a s s e t s  f o r  t h e  pu rpose  of evad ing  t a x e s .  

On March 23 ,  1973,  Lohmann and Renninghoff  wro te  l e t t e r s  t o  

rY"anagement r e f e r r i t  t o  Management 's telegram of January 3ls t ,  md s t a t ing  tha t  

t h e y  s t i l l  d i d n ' t  know where t h e i r  money was. On A p r i l  1 2 ,  

1973,  Management responded t o  Lohmann and Renninghoff w i t h  

i d e n t i c a l  l e t t e r s :  

Dear M r .  Lohmann (Renn inghof f ) :  

We a r e  d i s t u r b e d  by your  l e t t e r  o f  March 23rd ,  
1973. A s  I a d v i s e d  you, t h e  l i q u i d a t i o n  amount 
was d e p o s i t e d  i n  t h e  F i r s t  Pennsy lvan ia  Bank 
Account o f  A l b e r t  and S y l v i a  Kuhn. 

P l e a s e  r e c h e c k  t h i s  m a t t e r  w i t h  t h e  F i r s t  Pennsy lvan ia  
Bank. I f  you s t i l l  a r e  u n a b l e  t o  l o c a t e  your  f u n d s ,  
we have no c h o i c e ,  o f  c o u r s e ,  b u t  t o  c a l l  f o r  t h e  
a s s i s t a n c e  o f  t h e  German A u t h o r i t i e s  t o  h e l p  l o c a t e  
t h e  f u n d s .  

( S i g n e d )  McFadden 

On A p r i l  1 9 ,  1973,  Lohmann wrote  t o  t h e  Bank, as s u g g e s t e d  

by McFadden, and t h e  Bank informed McFadden on May 1 7 ,  1973 ,  

t h a t  i t  was w r i t i n g  t o  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  Lohmann and Renninghoff  

and i n f o r m i n g  them t h a t  t h e  checks  had been made p a y a b l e  t o  

A l b e r t  and S y l v i a  Kuhn i n  accordance  w i t h  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  

i n s t r u c t i o n s .  However, on June  22 ,  1973,  Renninghoff  a g a i n  wrote  

t o  McFadden s a y i n g  he had h e a r d  n o t h i n g  from t h e  Bank. He s a i d ,  

a l s o ,  " I f  I have no t  r e c e i v e d  a r e p l y  from you by J u l y  30, 1975 

t e l l i n g  me what h a s  happened t o  my money, I w i l l  s t a r t  l e g a l  

p r o c e e d i n g s . "  The l e t t e r  goes  on t o  say :  



"A prompt c l a r i f i c a t i o n  would a l s o  be i n  your  i n t e r e s t  
s i n c e  s e v e r a l  of  my r e l a t i v e s  and a c q u a i n t a n c e s  s t i l l  
have money i n v e s t e d  i n  t h e  Revere Fund." 

I n  s p i t e  of  a l l  of t h e  f o r e g o i n g  correspondence  and t h e  

i n q u i r y  o f  t h e  Westdeutsch Bank no a c t i o n  was t a k e n  o t h e r  

t h a n  t o  c o n f r o n t  Kuhn. Although Management had s t a t e d  t h a t  

i t  would c a l l  f o r  t h e  a s s i s t a n c e  o f  t h e  German a u t h o r i t i e s  i t  

never  d i d .  The c l e a r  i m p l i c a t i o n  o f  t h e  e v e n t s  i n  t h e  

Lohmann-Renninghoff m a t t e r ,  e x t e n d i n g  over  a p e r i o d  of  s e v e r a l  

months i s  t h a t  Management was r e a l l y  doing n o t h i n g  on b e h a l f  

of t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s .  For  example, i n s t e a d  of  r e f e r r i n g  t h e  

March 23 l e t t e r s  d i r e c t l y  t o  t h e  Bank, o r  making t h e  i n q u i r y  

i t s e l f  i n  t h e  i n t e r e s t  o f  s a v i n g  t i m e ,  Management wro te  t o  

s h a r e h o l d e r s  and t o l d  them t o  w r i t e  t h e  Bank. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  

Management d i d  n o t  r e f e r  t h e  m a t t e r  t o  t h e  German a u t h o r i t i e s  

o r  any s e c u r i t y  r e g u l a t o r y  a u t h o r i t y  such  a s  t h e  NASD o r  t h e  

SEC. A l l  t h a t  was done was t o  n o t i f y  Kuhn. 

Although Management was aware i n  January  1973, t h a t  s h a r e -

h o l d e r s ,  a t  t h e  v e r y  l e a s t ,  were c l a i m i n g  no t  t o  have r e c e i v e d  

some $47,000 i n  p roceeds ,  i t  was p u t  o f f  by Kuhnvs s t o r y  of  

t a x  e v a s i o n  and d i d  n o t  i n i t i a t e  any i n q u i r y  o f  i t s  own. F u r t h e r ,  

Management n e v e r  demanded t h e  proof  which Kuhn s t a t e d  he would 

p r o v i d e  showing t h a t  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  had i n  f a c t  r e c e i v e d  t h e i r  

funds .  

The i n e s c a p a b l e  c o n c l u s i o n  t o  be drawn from t h e  Lohmann- 

Renninghoff m a t t e r  i s  t h a t  i t  shou ld  have s e r v e d  a s  a  " r e d  f l a g , "  

p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  view of t h e  p r i o r  s e r i e s  of  problems which a l s o  



cou ld  be c o n s t r u e d  as  "red f l ags . "  I n s t e a d ,  r e s p o n d e n t s  

c o n t i n u e d  t o  p r o c e s s  t h e  redempt ions  payab le  t o  Kuhn, a l t h o u g h  

Hess t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he knew of  no o t h e r  i n s t a n c e s  were 

d e a l e r s  sought  t o  have proceeds  from c l i e n t s 1  a c c o u n t s  

d e p o s i t e d  i n  t h e i r  ( t h e  d e a l e r ' s )  a c c o u n t .  

Fol lowing t h e  i n i t i a l  n o t i c e  c o n c e r n i n g t h e  Lohmann- 

Renninghoff m a t t e r  i n  January  1973,  t h e r e  was an exchange o f  

some 10  l e t t e r s  o r  t e l e g r a m s  between Lohmann-Renninghoff, 

Management and t h e  Bank wi thou t  any r e s o l u t i o n  of  t h e  m a t t e r .  

Respondents  were hoping t h a t  i t  would "go away." However, 

compla in t s  from o t h e r  s h a r e h o l d e r s  fo l lowed  s o  t h a t  by 

October  1973, 6 s h a r e h o l d e r s  had i n q u i r e d  as  t o  t h e  whereabouts  

o f  t h e i r  p roceeds .  S t i l l  n o t h i n g  was done. Hess and Daly 

t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e y  though t  Kuhn was b e i n g  " d i l a t o r y . "  

Although Daly t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he d i d n ' t  " l i k e  t h e  s m e l l "  o f  i t  

and had i n s t i t u t e d  p r o c e d u r e s  which would r e q u i r e  Kuhn t o  commit 

f o r g e r y  he s t i l l  f e l t  t h e y  d i d  n o t  have " h a r d ,  ha rd  ev idence"  

t o  e n a b l e  them t o  t a k e  any a c t i o n  a g a i n s t  Kuhn. Daly s t a t e d  

"By t h e  t i m e  o f  t h e  second Heckner l e t t e r  (on  November 28 ,  1973)  

we were f e e l i n g  v e r y ,  ve ry  uncomfor table .  The h o r s e  was o u t  

o f  t h e  b a r n  door .  I f  Kuhn committed a f r a u d  o f  some s o r t  i t  

was done." D e s p i t e  a l l  o f  t h e  concern  and t h e  r e d  f l a g s  i n  1973,  

r e s p o n d e n t s  s t i l l  d i d  no t  n o t i f y  t h e  German a u t h o r i t i e s  o r  t h e  

Revere s h a r e h o l d e r s .  A f t e r  J a n u a r y  1974, t h e y  f e l t  t h a t  i t  

was common knowledge i n  Germany th rough  t h e  newspapess s o  i t  

was unnecessa ry  t o  make any d i s c l o s u r e  o f  t h e  f r a u d .  
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Throughout i t s  d e a l i n g  w i t h  s h a r e h o l d e r s t  compla fn t s ,  

p a r t i c u l a r l y  d u r i n g  t h e  "embezzlement p e r i o d n ,  Management. 

seems t o  have t a k e n  t h e  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  had 

a n  a f f i r m a t i v e  d u t y  t o  prove  t h a t  something was wrong 

r a t h e r  t h a n  t o  r e a l i z e  t h a t  once it was p u t  on n o t i c e  of  a 

problem, Management had t h e  a f f i r m a t i v e  d u t y  t o  i n q u i r e  i n t o  

i t .  I n s t e a d  r e s p o n d e n t s  informed Kuhn o f  t h e  compla in t s  and 

t h e n  d i d  n o t h i n g  f u r t h e r .  A s  t h e  Commission h a s  he ld ,  I n  t h e  

M a t t e r  of M e r r i l l  Lynch, P i e r c e ,  Fenner  & Beane, 31 SEC 494, 

Under the ci~cumstances respondent should have been aware of the 
fact  that [its w i r e  correspondentfs] customers w e r e  of the opinion 
that  they were i n  r ea l i ty  dealing with it; and it was under a 
duty t o  exercise a high degree of vigilance t o  prevent in jury t o  
those c u s t m r s  by [the wire correspondent]. Nevertheless, r e  ondent 
made no adequate ef for t  t o  supervise [the wire correspondent's+ 
act iv i t ies ,  or  t o  determine whether customers' orders were being 
properly forwarded t o  him o r  whether c u s t m r s '  monies and securi- 
t i e s  were transmitted t o  them by him; and it did not a t  any time 
d e m d  an examination of his books and records. It fai led t o  take 
any of these steps despite the fac t  that the omnibus account was a 
cash account with a relat ively large dollar  volume of transactions 
i n  relat ion t o  [the w i r e  correspondentts] resources, which respondent 
knew were meagre, and that it of'ten showed debit balances, credit  
balances, and securi t ies  held long. While it does not appear that 
respondent o r  any of i ts partners w a s  actually aware of [the wi re  
correspondent's] misappropriations, and the data i n  respondent s 
possession did not necessarily indicate the i rregulari t ies ,  t& 
informtion respondent had a t  leas t  called f o r  further inquiry t o  
sa tism it .that no i r regular i t ies  existed. Under the c i r c m t a n c e s  , 
the fa i lure  of respondent t o  inform i t s e l f  fu l ly  of the manner in 
which [the wire correspondent] dealt with c u s t m r s  and t o  take 
appropriate steps t o  rec t i fy  the features of its relationship with 
[the wire correspondent] that  f o m d  the means f o r  abuse by him must 
be deemed t o  have contributed effectively t o  [the wi re  correspondent 's] 
ab i l i ty  t o  defaud the custamers. Respondentfs course of business thus 
indirectly "operated a s  a fraud or  deceit" on the c u s t m r s  *** and 
constituted a violation by respondent of Section 10(b) of the Act and 
Rule lob-5 thereunder. (Emphasis s u p p l i e d )  
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Upon rev iew o f  t h e  r e c o r d  and c o n s i d e r a t i o n  o f  a11  of t h e  

c i rcumstances ,  as d i s c u s s e d  h e r e i n ,  it i s  found t h a t  Management 

and Hess w i l l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  and w i l l f u l l y  a i d e d  and a b e t t e d  

v i o l a t i o n s  of  S e c t i o n  1 0 ( b )  of  t h e  Exchange Act and Rule lob-.5 

t h e r e u n d e r .  

OTHER MATTERS 

W i l l f u l l n e s s  

The f i n d i n g s  h e r e i n  t h a t  t h e  responden t s  v i o l a t e d  t h e  -

-1 4 /
Exchange Act have been found t o  have been w i l l f u l .  Dur ing  

t h e  c o u r s e  of t h e  p roceed ing  and i n  t h e i r  b r i e f s  r e s p o n d e n t s t  

counse l  have contended,  r e l y i n g  on E r n s t  & E r n s t  v. Hochfe lde r ,  

425 U.S. 185 (1976) ,  t h a t  any v i o l a t i o n s  found t o  e x i s t  must 

be based on s c i e n t e r .  However, i n  I n  t h e  M a t t e r  of  Steadman 

S e c u r i t y  Corpora t ion ,  S e c u r i t i e s  Exchange Act Re lease  No. 13695 

12 SEC Docket ( June  29, 19771, a p p e a l  pending ( C . A . )  t h e  

Commission heldthat the s c i e n t e r  r e q u i r e m e n t s  of  Hochfe lder  were 

i n a p p l i c a b l e  t o  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  p roceed ings  i n i t i a t e d  by t h e  

Commission. 

JURISDICTION 

Respondents u rge  t h a t  t h e  Commission does  n o t  have j u r i s -  

d i c t i o n  over  r e s p o n d e n t s  because  Kuhnt s f r a u d u l e n t  a c t s  were 

committed i n  Germany. Respondents  i g n o r e  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  

Management and Revere a r e  r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  t h e  Commission; t h a t  

-l 4 /  It is w e l l  established tha t  a  finding of willfullness does not require 
ari intent t o  violate the law. As  the Court of Appeals fo r  the Second 
Circuit has said, the wold ffwillfullyff in Section 15(b) of the Exchange 
Act "means intentionally cormitting the act which constitutes the 
(cont hued)  



t h e  s a l e  of Revere ' s s h a r e s  a r e  . s u b j e c t  t o  Commission r e p o r t i n g  

and d i s c l o s u r e  r e q u i r e m e n t s ;  and t h a t  a l l  of  t h e  a c t i v i t i e s .  

engaged i n  by Hess and Management t o o k  p l a c e  w i t h i n  t h e  Uni ted  

S t a t e s ,  as i n d e e d ,  d i d  many of  Kuhnls a c t i v i t i e s .  It i s  t h e  -

conduct  of  r e s p o n d e n t s ,  as w e l l  as Kuhnls ,  t h a t  i s  a t  i s s u e  

h e r e .  The f a c t  t h a t  s h a r e h o l d e r s  who s u f f e r e d  harm as a r e s u l t  

of  r e s p o n d e n t s 1  a c t i v i t i e s  r e s i d e d  o u t s i d e  t h e  b o r d e r s  o f  t h e  

Uni t ed  S t a t e s  does  n o t  e x c l u d e  r e s p o n d e n t s  from t h e  Commission1s 

S u r i s d i c t i o n .  A s  t h e  Court o f  Appeals f o r  t h e  T h i r d  C i r c u i t- - -

1 5 1  
h a s  r e c e n t l y  n o t e d  i n  -SEC v. K a s s e r ,  548 F.2d 109,  1 1 4  (1977): 

''The federal securi t ies  laws, in our view, do grant jurisdiction 
i n  transnational securi t ies  cases where at least  some ac t iv i ty  
designed t o  f'urther a fraudulent schem occurs within t h i s  
country. There i s  nothing in Section 10(b) o r  i ts conpanion 
a n t i h u d  provisions t o  thwart t h e i r  appl ica t im t o  fraudulent 
transactions when the actual locus of the  harm i s  outside the 
t e r r i t o r i a l  limits of the  United States. Indeed, by t h e i r  own 
terms, the anti-fraud l a w s  suggest that such application is 
proper. The securi t ies  acts  expressly apply t o  "foreign camnerce," 
thereby evincing a Congressional intent  for  a broad jurisdictional 
scope for  the  1933 and 1934 Act. breover ,  Section lO(b) a d  its related 
p v i s i o n s  seem t o t e  m i y  concerned with conduct, having no requir-
emnt tha t  acconplishment of the attempted h u d  be a p c o n d i t i o n  t o  
staCvutor-y I lab i l i ty .  

Advice o f  Counsel  

Respondents  contend t h a t  a l l  a c t s  and d e c i s i o n s  t a k e n  by 

Management, t h e  Revere Board and/or  Hess were t a k e n  w i t h  t h e  

a d v i c e  o f  c o u n s e l ,  Daly.  

(Conth u e d  ) 
violation. " Tager v. S.E.C., 344 F. 2d 5, 8 (1965), affirming Sidnex 
Tr,age 42 S.E.C. 132 (1964). See also. La& Brothers, Inc., Securit ies 
Exchame Act Release No. 10417/13 SEC Docket 265 (October 3. 1977): 

:Arthur U ~ w rCormration v. S.E.C. 547 F.2d I 
~il-s Gsociatks,  Inc., 43-C. -641, 649 

0 S.E.C. 532, 536 (1961); Hughes v. 
41g4g). 

S E C. *  *,  

- . - - . - -
(C.A. 2, 1976); 

15/ See also, Straub v. Vaisman & Co., Inc. 540 F.2d 591, 595 (1976).-



The Commission h a s  h e l d  t h a t  r e l i a n c e  on counse l  does 

n o t  s h i f t  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  complying w i t h  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  

a c t s .  I n  Dow Theory F o r e c a s t s ,  I n c . ,  43S.E.C.h21,831-32 (13ES),tk 

Commission s a i d :  

"Reliance upon the advice of counsel does not, of course 

negate willf'ullness. An investment adviser cannot sh i f t  

his duty of compliance with the Act t o  counsel. The 

investing public is ent i t led t o  the fu l les t  protection of 

the law regardless of what counsel s view may have been. " 


The r e c o r d  shows t h a t  Daly was f r e q u e n t l y  c o n s u l t e d  by 

McFadden on a n  a lmost  d a i l y  b a s i s  concern ing  o p e r a t i o n a l  

m a t t e r s  a t  Management, p a r t i c u l a r l y  problems w i t h  Kuhn. These 

were l a r g e l y  f a c t u a l  m a t t e r s  and n o t  q u e s t i o n s  of l a w  on 

which Daly, i n  t u r n ,  c o n s u l t e d  Hess. I n  any e v e n t ,  r e s p o n d e n t s  

cannot  e scape  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  s e e i n g  t h a t  Kuhn complied 

w i t h  t h e  law. Hess r ecogn ized  t h i s  when he t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e  

way o f  doing b u s i n e s s  i n  Germany was d i f f e r e n t  compared t o  t h e  

r i g j d  r u l e s  t h a t  govern t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  b u s i n e s s  i n  t h e  Uni ted  

S t a t e s .  
-16/ 

I n  Kidder ,  Peabody & Co., e t  a l . ,  43 S.E.C. 911, 914, 

t h e  Commission s t a t e d :  

'While reliance upon advice of counsel is a fact that  may 

be taken in to  account in determining what sanctions are 

appropriate in the public in teres t ,  it does not excuse a 

fai lure t o  comply with applicable provisions of law.  See, 

e.g. Dar Theory Forecasts, Inc." 

-16/ See, also Arthur Upper Corp., e t  al. v. S.E.C., 547 F.2d 717 (c.A. 2, 
19761. 



P u b l i c  I n t e r e s t  

The remain ing  i s s u e  concerns  t h e  r e m e d i a l  a c t i o n  which 

i s  a p p r o p r i a t e  i n  t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  t h e  

r e s p o n d e n t s  h e r e i n .  The a p p r o p r i a t e  r e m e d i a l  a c t i o n  a s  t o  

a p a r t i c u l a r  r e sponden t  depends on t h e  f a c t s  and' c i r c u m s t a n c e s  

a p p l i c a b l e  t o  t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  c a s e  and cannot  be measured 

p r e c i s e l y  on t h e  b a s i s  o f  a c t i o n  t a k e n  a g a i n s t  o t h e r  
-1 7 /  

r e s p o n d e n t s .  

The D i v i s i o n  has  proposed t h a t  t h e  u l t i m a t e  s a n c t i o n s  be 

imposed on bo th  Management and Hess.  It recommends t h a t  

Management's r e g i s t r a t i o n  a s  a b r o k e r - d e a l e r  be  revoked;  

p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  1 5 ( b ) ( 4 )  of t h e  Exchange Act;  t h a t  it 

be e x p e l l e d  from membership i n  t h e  NASD; and t ha t  Management 

o r  i t s  s u b s i d i a r i e s  o r  s u c c e s s o r s  be  permanent ly  p r o h i b i t e d  

from s e r v i n g  o r  a c t i n g  a s  an  inves tment  a d v i s e r  o f ,  o r  p r i n c i -  

p a l  f o r ,  a r e g i s t e r e d  inves tment  company, p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  

9 ( b )  of t h e  Inves tment  Company Act.  

The D i v i s i o n  recommends t h a t  Hess be b a r r e d  from be ing  

a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  a  b r o k e r - d e a l e r ,  from b e i n g  a s s o c i a t e d  wi th  

a  member of  t h e  NASD and from b e i n g  a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  any 

n a t i o n a l  s e c u r i t i e s  exchange o r  r e g i s t e r e d  s e c u r i t i e s  a s s o c i a t i o n  

p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n s  1 5 ( b ) ( 6 ) ,  1 9 ( h ) ( 2 )  and 1 9 ( h ) ( 3 ) ,  r e s p e c t i v e l y  * 

of  t h e  Exchange Act;  and t h a t  he be permanently p r o h i b i t e d  

from s e r v i n g  o r  a c t i n g  a s  an employee, o f f i c e r ,  d i r e c t o r ,  member 

Dlugash v. S.E.C., 373 F.2d 107, 110 (C.A. 2, 1967). 
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of  an inves tment  a d v i s o r y  board ,  inves tment  a d v i s e r  o f ,  o r  

p r i n c i p a l  u n d e r w r i t e r  f o r ,  a r e g i s t e r e d  inves tmen t  company 

o r  from b e i n g  an a f f i l i a t e d  pe r son  o f  such  inves tmen t  a d v i s e r  

d e p o s i t o r  o r  p r i n c i p a l  u n d e r w r i t e r  p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  g ( b )  

of  t h e  Inves tment  Company Act .  

Respondentsargue t h a t  i m p o s i t i o n  of  s a n c t i o n s ,  e s p e c i a l l y  

a s  r e q u e s t e d  by t h e  D i v i s i o n ,  i s  n o t  war ran ted  o r  r e q u i r e d  

i n  t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t ;  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  no r i s k  of  f u t u r e  

r e p e t i t i o n  of  t h e  1973 e v e n t s ;  t h a t  t h e  i n d i v i d u a l s  who were 

a c t i v e  i n  t h e  o p e r a t i o n s  o f  Management a r e  no l o n g e r  a s s o c i a t e d  

w i t h  Management; and t h a t  Hess h a s  an  unblemished r e c o r d  o f  

o v e r  30 y e a r s  i n  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  b u s i n e s s  w i t h  no p r i o r  c h a r g e s  

a g a i n s t  him. 

Respondents  con tend ,  a l s o ,  t h a t  a p p l i c a t i o n  o f  s a n c t i o n s ,  

indeed  t h e  f i n d i n g  of  v i o l a t i o n s  a g a i n s t  them, i s  p rec luded  

because  Kuhn was an  independent  c o n t r a c t o r  and n o t  an  a g e n t  

o f  Management and Hess had no c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  Management. T h i s  

i s  a form o v e r  s u b s t a n c e  argument .  The r e c o r d  i s  c l e a r  t h a t  

Kuhn was an  a g e n t  of  Management which had t h e  a u t h o r i t y  and power 

t o  c o n t r o l  h i s  a c t i v i t i e s  b u t  f a i l e d  t o  do  s o .  Management d e a l t  
18/

w i t h  Kuhn on eve ry  l e v e l -  and t h e  d e l e g a t i n g  o f  t h e  

r edempt ions  t o  t h e  Pennsy lvan ia  Bank d i d  no t  r e l i e v e  i t  

o f  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  complying w i t h  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  laws and 

m a i n t a i n i n g  d i s c i p l i n e  o v e r  Kuhn. Hess,  a l t h o u g h  n o t  an  employee 

o f  Management, was Chairman o f  Revere and p r e s i d e d  a t  Board 

-18/  Including the paying of Kuhnls printing b i l l s  in G e m y .  



meet ings  which were h e l d  a s  luncheon meet ings  a t  a c l u b  i n  

t h e  same b u i l d i n g  where Hess and Management had o f f i c e s .  

However, Hess made a l l  o r  m o s t ' o f  t h e  d e c i s i o n s , i . e . ,  t h e  

d e c i s i o n  made on October  1 5 ,  1973, t o  h e n c e f o r t h  make checks 

payable  only  t o  s h a r e h o l d e r s  was approved by Hess a l t h o u g h  

the i e t t e r  announcing t h e  a c t i o n  s a i d  i t  was a Board d e c i s i o n .  

A c t u a l l y  t h e  Board was informed l a t e r .  Hess was, a l s o ,  t h e  

one v i s i t e d  by Kuhn on h i s  v i s i t s  t o  P h i l a d e l p h i a ,  and t h e  

f requency of  such v i s i t s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  when Kuhn was no 

l o n g e r  s e l l i n g  Revere s h a r e s ,  shou ld  have a roused  some c u r i o s i t y .  

Ra the r  t h a n  be ing  i s o l a t e d  Hess was a t  t h e  c e n t e r  of  a c t i v i t y .  

The v i a l a t i o n s  found h e r e i n  a r e  s e r i o u s  and cannot  be  

excused by a l a c k  o f  knowledge o r  u n d e r s t a n d i n g  o f  p e r t i n e n t  

r equ i rements ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  where r e s p o n d e n t s  i n d i c a t e d  an  aware-

n e s s  o f  p r o p e r  p rocedures  and t h e n  f a i l e d  t o  adopt  them o r  

t o  f o l l o w  th rough ,  a s  i n  t h e  a b o r t e d  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  o f  Kuhn. 

A s  t h e  Commission h a s  r e c e n t l y  s a i d  i n  Lamb B r o t h e r s ,  I n c . ,  

S e c u r i t i e s  Exchange Act Re lease  No. 14017/13 SEC Docket 265 

(October  3,  1977) :  

Past misconduct is the essent ial  predicate for  l i ab i l i ty .  Chce 
l i a b i l i t y  has been established, our concern is with the remedy. 
And there our orientation is t o  the future. Two questions are 
presented. The first is: What action is needed t o  protectinves- 
tors frwm future harm at the particular respondent's hands? 
Pertinent t o  that  inquiry i s  the fact  that  t* s ta tu te  is drawn 
on the premise tha t  past misconduct gives r i s e  t o  an inference 
of future dsconduct . See ~oelber-patterson, Inc ., 12 
S.E. C. 330,, 336 (1942) ; A. J. White & Co., Securities Exchange 
Act Release No. 10645 (February 15, 1974), 3 SEC Docket 550, 551-
552; Arthur Lipper Corporation Securities Exchange Act Release 
No. 11773 (October 24, 1975), 6 E C  Docket 273, 281, a f f t d  in part 
and reversed in part, 547 F. 2d 171 (C.A. 2, 1976); Richard C. 
S e r ,  Inc., Securities Exchange Act Release No. 12104 (February 
1 m 7 6 ) ,  8 SEC Docket 1257, 1266-1268. The second aues t im is: 



What effect  w i l l  our action or  inaction have on standards of 
conduct i n  the securi t ies  business generally? A s  the Court 
of Appeals fo r  the Second Circuit has recently observed, "The 
purpose of sanctions must be t o  demonstrate not only t o  peti-  
t ioners but t o  others tha t  the  Cornmission w i l l  deal harshly 
with egregious cases." Arthur Liipper Corporation v. S.E.C., 
547 F.2d 171, 184 (C.A. 2, 1976). 

I n  view o f  a l l  of  t h e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  i t  i s  concluded t h a t  

t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  r e q u i r e s  r e v o c a t i o n  o f  Management's 

r e g i s t r a t i o n  as a b r o k e r - d e a l e r  and t h a t  Hess be b a r r e d  f rom 

a s s o c i a t i o n  w i t h  an  inves tmen t  company. 

ORDER 

Accordingly ,  IT I S  ORDERED t h a t  t h e  r e g i s t r a t i o n  a s  a 

b r o k e r - d e a l e r  o f  Revere Management Co., I n c . ,  i s  revoked and 

t h e  company i s  e x p e l l e d  from membership i n  t h e  N a t i o n a l  

A s s o c i a t i o n  o f  S e c u r i t i e s  D e a l e r s ,  I n c . ;  and t h a t  Management 

o r  i t s  s u b s i d i a r i e s  o r  s u c c e s s o r s  i s  permanent ly  p r o h i b i t e d  

from s e r v i n g  o r  a c t i n g  as a n  i n v e s t m e n t  a d v i s e r  o f ,  o r  p r i n c i p a l  

f o r ,  a r e g i s t e r e d  inves tmen t  company, p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  9 ( b )  

of t h e  Inves tmen t  Company Act ;  and t h a t  W i l l i a m  M .  Hess ,  i s  

b a r r e d  from s e r v i n g  o r  a c t i n g  i n  t h e  c a p a c i t i e s  enumerated i n  

S e c t i o n  g ( b )  o f  t h e  Inves tment  Company Act o f  1940. 

FURTBER ORDERED t h a t  t h e  c h a r g e s  i n  t h e  o r d e r  f o r  pro-  

c e e d i n g s  a s  t o  A l b e r t  Kuhn and American Fund S e r v i c e s ,  L t d . ,  

a r e  d i s m i s s e d  w i t h o u t  p r e j u d i c e  t o  b e i n g  r e i n s t a t e d  a t  a 

f u t u r e  t ime .  



T h i s  o r d e r  s h a l l  become e f f e c t i v e  i n  accordance  w i t h  

and s u b j e c t  t o  Rule 1 7 ( f )  o f  t h e  Commission's Ru les  of  

P r a c t i c e .  

Pursuan t  t o  Rule 1 7 ( f ) ,  t h i s  i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n  s h a l l  

become t h e  f i n a l  d e c i s i o n  of  t h e  Commission as t o  each  p a r t y  

who h a s  n o t  w i t h i n  f i f t e e n  days  a f t e r  s e r v i c e  o f  t h i s  

i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n  upon him, f i l e d  a p e t i t i o n  f o r  r ev iew of  

t h i s  i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n  p u r s u a n t  t o  Rule 1 7 ( b ) ,  u n l e s s  t h e  

Commission, p u r s u a n t  t o  Rule 1 7 ( c )  d e t e r m i n e s  on i t s  own 

i n i t i a t i v e  t o  r ev iew t h i s  i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n  as t o  him. If 

a p a r t y  t i m e l y  f i l e s  a p e t i t i o n  f o r  r ev iew,  o r  t h e  Commission 
19/  

t a k e s  a c t i o n  t o  r ev iew as t o  a p a r t y ,  t h e  i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n -  

s h a l l  n o t  become f i n a l  w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  t h a t  p a r t y .  

al* Hunter  Tracy  r 
~ d m i n i s t r a t i v eLaw Judge  

Washington, D . C .  
December 2 ,  1977 

-19/ A l l  proposed findings, conclusions, and supporting argumnts of the  
part ies  have been considered. To the . extent that the proposed findings 
and conclusions submitted by the part ies ,  and the arguments made by 
them are in accordance with the  views herein they are accepted,' and 
t o  the extent they are incorisistent therewith they are rejected. 


